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JAMES G. ZUPKA, C.P.A., INC.
Certified Public Accountants
5240 East 98" Street
Garfield Hts., Ohio 44125

Member American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (216) 475 - 6136 Ohio Society of Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor, City Auditor, The Honorable Betty Montgomery
and Members of City Council Auditor of State
City of Wadsworth, Ohio State of Ohio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Wadsworth, Ohio, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004, which collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Anauditalso includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Wadsworth, Ohio, as of December
31, 2004, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof,
and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund and the Income Tax special revenue
fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.



Inaccordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November
30, 2005, on our consideration of the City of Wadsworth, Ohio’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and
not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements
but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on
it.

James G. Zupka, CPA, Inc.
Certified Public Accountants

November 30, 2005



City of Wadsworth, Ohio
Management’ s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Unaudited

The discussion and analysis of the City of Wadsworth financial performance provides an overall review of
the City’s financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2004. The intent of this discussion and
analysis is to look at the City’s financial performance as a whole; aong with the review of the basic
financial statements for the reader to enhance their understanding of the City’s financia performance.

Using this Annual Financial Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand the City of as a financial whole.

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities (referred collectively as the government-wide
statements) provide information about the activities of the entire City and present a longer-term view of the
City’s finances. Mgor fund financia statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds,
these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what dollars remain for future
spending. The fund financial statements also look at the City’s most significant funds with all other
nonmajor funds presented in total in one column. The Proprietary Funds statements are prepared on the
same basis as the government-wide statements. The remaining statements provide financial information
about activities for which the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the
government.

Reporting the City of Wadsworth as a Whole

Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities

These government-wide statements answer the question, “How did the City as awhole do financially during
2004"? They are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, including all assets and liabilities, much the
same way as for a private enterprise. This basis of accounting takes into account all of the current year's
revenues and expenses regardless of when the cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City’s net assets and the changes in those assets. This is important, as it
tells the reader whether, for the City has a whole, the financial position of the City has improved or
diminished. However, in evauating the overal position of the City, nonfinancia information such as
changes in the tax base and the condition of the City’s needs will also need to be evaluated.

The Statement of Net Assets This Statement (page 12) reports all assets and liabilities of the
City as of December 31, 2004. The difference between total assets and total liabilities is
reported as net assets. Increases in net assets generally indicate an improvement in financia
position while decreases may indicate a deterioration of financial position.

The Statement of Activities. This Statement (page 13) serves the purpose of the traditional
income statement. It provides consolidated reporting of the results of all activities of the City
for the year ended December 31, 2004. Changes in net assets are recorded in the period in
which the underlying event takes place, which may differ from the period in which cash is
received or disbursed. The Statement of Activities displays the expense of the City’s various
programs net of related revenues, as well as the separate presentation of revenues available
for general purposes.
3



In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the City is divided into two kinds of
activities:

Governmental Activities — The reporting of services including public safety, administration and all
departments, with the exception of the Sewer Fund, Water Fund, Electric Fund, Sanitation Fund and
Telecommunications, which are reported as Business- Type Activities.

Business-Type Activities — The City reports the activity of services (Sewer, Water, Electric,
Telecommunications and Sanitation) where the City charges the user fees to recover the cost of providing
the service as well as all capital expenses associated with the facilities.

Reporting the City of Wadsworth's Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

These statements provide financial position and results of the City’s major funds. A fund is an accounting
entity created to account for a specific activity or purpose. The creation of some funds is mandated by law
and other are created by management to demonstrate financia compliance with budgetary or lega
requirements. Funds are classified into three broad categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for “Government-Type’
activities. Unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund statements
use a “flow of financial resources’ measurement focus. The governmental fund statements
provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic
services it provides. Increases in spendable resources are reported in the operating statement
as “revenues’ or “other financing sources’. Decreases in spendable resources are reported as
expenditures or other financing uses. Income taxes, property taxes, charges for services and
state and federal grants finance most of those activities. The basic government fund financial
statements can be found on pages 14 through 19 of this report.

Proprietary Funds. There are two types of Proprietary Funds. Enterprise Funds and Internal
Service Funds.

Enterprise Funds - These funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises for which either 1) the intent is
that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) be recovered primarily through user charges,
or 2) determination of net income is appropriate for management control, accountability or
other purposes.

The City of Wadsworth’s Sewer Fund, Water Fund and Electric Fund are al considered to be
major funds and are displayed separately in the proprietary fund statements on pages 20
through 22.

Internal Service Funds. - Often, governments wish to allocate the cost of providing certain
centralized services (e.g., garages, health insurance, etc.) to the other departments of the
government entity that use the services. An Interna Service Fund is the appropriate
accounting mechanism when it is the intent of the government to recover the full cost of
providing the service through user charges to other departments.



The Vehicle Maintenance Fund, Health-Insurance Retention Fund and Liability Insurance
Retention Fund are the City of Wadsworth’ s Internal Service Funds.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the City government. Fiduciary Funds are not reflected in the government-
wide financia statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support
the City’s own programs. The accounting used for Fiduciary Funds is much like that used for
Proprietary Funds.

A Fiduciary Fund statement is on page 23 of this report.

Other | nformation

Notesto the Basic Financial Statements.

The notes provide additiona and explanatory data. They are an integral part of the basic financial
statements. Notes to the Basic Financial Statements can be found on pages 24 through 65 of this report.

The City of Wadsworth asa Whole

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City’s financia position. In the
case of the City of Wadsworth, assets exceed liabilities by $40,776,409 in governmental activities and
$38,546,426 in business-type activities as of December 31, 2004. The largest portion of the City’s net assets
reflects its investment in capital assets (ie.; land, buildings, land improvements, vehicles, equipment and
infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these
capital assets to provide services to its citizens, consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources. Since the capital
assets themselves are needed to provide services, they cannot be sold to pay liabilities. Net assets are
presented in the following table:

TABLE1
NET ASSETS
Governmental Governmental Business-Type Business-Type
Activities Activities Activities Activities Total Tota
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Assets
Current and Other Assets $17,046,907 $15,319,519 $12,801,510 $12,662,452 $29,848,417 $27,981,971
Capital Assets, Net 30,855,311 31,148,297 39,616,399 41,577,140 70,472,210 72,725,437
Total Assets 47,902,218 46,467,816 52,418,409 54,239,592 100,320,627 100,707,408
Liabilities
Current and Other Liabilities 3,580,604 2,574,155 1,882,006 2,389,834 5,462,610 4,963,989
LongTerm Liabilities, Due
Within One Y ear 451,437 741,555 571,930 918,662 1,023,367 1,660,217
LongTerm Liabilities, Due
in More Than One 'Y ear 3,093,768 2,922,245 11,418,047 11,880,124 14,511,815 14,802,369
Tota Liabilities 7,125,809 6,237,955 13,871,983 15,188,620 20,997,792 21,426,575




Governmental Governmental Business-Type Business-Type
Activities Activities Activities Activities Total Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Net Assets
Invested in Capital
Assets, Net of Debt 28,849,545 28,724,668 29,136,899 30,003,685 57,986,444 58,728,353
Restricted 9,266,613 8,877,008 0 0 9,266,613 8,877,008
Unrestricted 2,660,251 2,628,185 9,409,527 9,047,287 12,069,778 11,675,472
Total Net Assets $40,776,409 $40,229,861 $38,546,426 $39,050,972 $79,322,835 $79,280,833

During 2004, the City’s overall financia position increased by $42,002 as Governmental Activities Net
Assets increased by $546,548 and those for Business-Type Activities declined by $504,546.

Table 2 below, indicates the changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2004, for koth the
Governmental and Business- Type Activities.

TABLE 2
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Governmental Governmental Business-Type Business-Type
Activities Activities Activities Activities Tota Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $3,305,478 $1,741,071 $28,749,627 $26,079,454 $32,055,105 $27,820,525
Operating Grants and Contributions 470,466 445,664 0 0 470,466 445,664
Capital Grants and Contributions 331,574 480,452 0 0 331,574 480,452
General Revenues:
Taxes 7,545,967 7,155,452 0 0 7,545,967 7,155,452
Grants and Entitlements Not
Restricted to Specific Programs 3,447,008 3,055,744 0 0 3,447,008 3,055,744
Investment Income 76,320 76,023 530,796 114,031 607,116 190,054
Other Income 8,251 431,895 0 34,075 8,251 465,970
Total Revenues 15,185,064 13,386,301 29,280,423 26,227,560 44,465,487 39,613,861
Expenses
Program Expenses:
Genera Government 3,422,001 3,437,464 0 0 3,422,001 3,437,464
Security of Persons and Property 5,864,968 4,914,431 0 0 5,864,968 4,914,431
Public Services 135 256 0 0 135 256
Public Health 145,643 210,533 0 0 145,643 210,533
Leisure Time Services 2,023,707 1,931,413 0 0 2,023,707 1,931,413
Community and Economic
Development 478,550 666,141 0 0 478,550 666,141
Public Works 30,140 41,613 0 0 30,140 41,613
Transportation 2,512,197 2,183,987 0 0 2,512,197 2,183,987
Intergovernmental 16,529 0 0 0 16,529 0



Governmental Governmental Business-Type Business-Type
Activities Activities Activities Activities Tota Tota
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Interest and Fiscal Charges 146,971 172,803 0 0 146,971 172,803
Electric 0 0 23,589,034 18,960,567 23,589,034 18,960,567
Sanitation 0 0 1,284,315 1,450,513 1,284,315 1,450,513
Sewer 0 0 2,497,533 2,266,394 2,497,533 2,266,394
Telecom 0 0 10,344 0 10,344 0
Water 0 0 2,401,418 1,637,700 2,401,418 1,637,700
Total Expenses 14,640,841 13,558,641 29,782,644 24,315,174 44,423,485 37,873,815
Increase in Net Assets
Before Transfers 544,223 (172,340) (502,221) 1,912,386 42,002 1,740,046
Transfers 2,325 0 (2,325) 0 0 0
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
After Transfers 546,548 (172,340) (504,546) 1,912,386 42,002 1,740,046
Net Assets- Beginning 40,229,861 40,402,201 39,050,972 37,138,586 79,280,833 77,540,787
Net Assets - Ending $40,776,409 $40,229,861 $38,546,426 $39,050,972 $79,322,835 $79,280,833

Governmental Activities

The City income tax is the largest cortributor of revenue sources in government activities accounting for
35.70% of total revenues. Property and other local taxes generate 13.98% and grants and entitlements
generate 27.98% of total revenues.

Revenue Sources
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The City’s direct charges to users of governmental services represent 21.76% of total revenue. These
charges are from fees for recreational activities, fines and forfeitures related to judicial activity and licenses
and permits.

Security of Persons and Property account for 40.06% of governmental expenses, general government
accounts for 23.37% of governmental expenses while transportation costs and leisure time activities
represent 17.16% and 13.82% of governmental expenses respectively.



Expense Types
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Business-Type Activities

The City’s business-type activities are the electric, sanitation, sewer and water services. The City provides
curbside trash pick-up as well as yard waste pick-up. Income to provide services is derived from user fees
set by Council.

Charges for services generated 98.19% of all revenues in the business-type activities.
Individual Funds Summary And Analysis

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to demonstrate and ensure compliance with finance related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds— The focus of the City’s Governmental Funds is to provide information on near term
outflows, inflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the City’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s Governmental Funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $11,905,538, a 6.72% increase of $749,757 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately
79.52% of this total amount of $11,905,538 is available for spending at the government’s discretion. The
remainder of fund balance, if any, is reserved to indicate that it is not readily available for new spending
since it has already been committed to liquidate contracts and purchase commitments, to pay debt service or
for avariety of other restricted purposes.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City of Wadsworth. At the end of the current year,
the General Funds' unreserved balance was $2,710,107, while the total fund balance was $3,465,980. As a
measure of the General Fund' s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total
fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 36.79% of total General Fund
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 47.05% of that same amount. The General Fund balance
increased by $4,414 or 0.13% over the prior year.



The Income Tax Fund receives adl income tax revenue, expenses the dollars necessary to administer the
income tax activities and then distributes dollars as needed for operation of the General Fund, Recreation
Fund, Street Fund and Capital Improvement. The needs of these funds exceeded revenues in Income Tax by
$149,099.

Proprietary Funds — The City’s Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide business-type activity financial statements, but in more detail. Net Assets in the Sewer,
Water, Electric and Other Enterprise Funds increased (decreased) $669,972, (10.47%), $(276,800) (2.67%),
$(1,068,503) (5.02%) and $297,722 (34.77%), respectively.

Budgetary Highlights
Asrequired by State statute, City Council adopts an annual budget.

There was no significant change from the original budget to the final budget. Actual General Fund Property
Tax and Other Loca Tax Collections were approximately $31,756 under the budget. Interest Earnings
suffered again in 2004 as a result of record low interest rates.

Actua General Fund expenditures compared to the budget included approximately $463,000 remaining in
encumbered funds as of December 31, 2004. Security of Persons and Property which is largely the Police
and Fire Department activity, accounted for $221,571 of those encumbered funds and General Government
accounted for $191,214.

Actual revenue collected in the City’s Income Tax Fund was equal to the budgeted amount, while expenses
remained constant. As aresult the management cut expenses in the funds supported by 1 ncome Tax.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of December 31,
2004, amounts to $70,472,210 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investmert in capital assets includes
Land; Construction in Progress; Infrastructure Work in Progress; Buildings; Land Improvements; Vehicles;
Equipment; and Infrastructure. The total decrease in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current
year was 3.10% (0.94% decrease for governmental activity and a 4.71% decrease for business-type activity)
(See Note 13).

Governmental Governmental Business-Type Business-Type

Activities Activities Activities Activities Tota Total

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Land and Improvements $3,960,515 $3,960,515 $492,686 $482,260 $4,453,201 $4,442,775
Construction in Progress 255,346 0 107,490 80,000 362,836 80,000

Infrastructure Work in

Progress 0 0 916,195 2,709,491 916,195 2,709,491
Land Improvements 891,407 923,708 6,169 6,532 897,576 930,240
Buildings 5,028,315 5,201,965 3,248,186 3,380,461 8,276,501 8,582,426
Vehicles 1,320,888 1,522,934 1,354,344 1,404,110 2,675,232 2,927,044
Equipment 747942 890,270 734,552 784,615 1,482,494 1,674,885
Infrastructure 18,650,898 18,648,905 32,757,277 32,729,671 51,408,175 51,378,576
Total Capital Assets, Net $30,855,311 $31,148,297 $39,616,899 $41,577,140 $70,472,210 $72,725,437




Debt

At December 31, 2004, the City had a total debt of $12,283,007 in long-term bonds, loans and other
outstanding obligations, excluding compensated absences and intergovernmental payables. Details of
individual obligations can be found on page 51. A large portion of this debt is revenue bonds and not a
genera obligation of the City.

The general obligation indebtedness of the City is subject to two statutory debt limitations referred to as the
direct debt limitation: (Section 133.05 ORC). Certain debt with a repayment source other than general tax
revenue, is excluded from this limitation. Under the definition, the City has approximately $24,000 of net
indebtedness as of December 31, 2004. The aggregate principa amount of unvoted net indebtedness may
not exceed $43,498,169, which is 10.50% of the assessed value of real and personal property. This leaves an
available unvoted debt limit of $43,474,169. The aggregate principal amount of voted nonexempt net
indebtedness of the City may not exceed $22,784,765, which is 5.50% of the assessed value of real and
personal property.

Additional information regarding the City’s long-term obligations can be found in Note 18 of this report.

Governmental Governmental Business-Type Business-Type

Activities Activities Activities Activities Total Tota

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
General Obligation Bonds $1,685,000 $1,980,000 $0 $0 $1,685,000 $1,980,000
Revenue Bonds 0 0 10,480,000 10,899,167 10,480,000 10,899,167
Specid Assessment Bonds 12,000 24,000 0 0 12,000 24,000

Police and Fire Past

Service Costs 106,007 107,686 0 0 106,007 107,686
Total LongTerm Debt $1,803,007 $2,111,686 $10,480,000 $10,899,167 $12,283,007 $13,010,853

Economic Factors

The City’s original budget for 2004 utilized conservative revenue estimates with limited increases in base
operating costs. Expenditures were projected to exceed revenues in some of the funds, including the generd
fund. City Council decided they wanted to maintain current service levels to the residents of the City by
utilizing reserve fund balances.

Actua Genera Fund revenues were 29.38% more than the original estimated revenue for 2004. Actual
General Fund expenditures were 7.12% less than the 2004 original budgeted expenditures. The net change
fund balance after all activity was originally budgeted to decline 71.70%. The actua net change in fund
balance was a decline of 5.44%.

Department requests were reduced from original submissior certain requested capital projects and capital
acquisitions were eliminated or reduced; and only those items that management and City Council
determined necessary were appropriated. City Council continues to pursue new revenue sources, while
reviewing the possibility of increasing existing sources, in addition to a continued review of reducing
expenditures. A close watch of current economic conditions is ongoing to determine if increased revenues,
or further reductions in expenditures, are necessary in order to maintain fiscal stability.
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Contacting the City Finance Department

Thisfinancia report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, creditors and investors with an overview
of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the noney it receives. If you have any
guestions about this report or need additiona financia information, contact John P. Moss, Auditor, 120
Maple Street, Wadsworth, OH 44281, (330)335-2742, jmoss@wadsworthcity.org.
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City of Wadsworth, Ohio
Medina County
Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2004

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivaents in Segregated Accounts
Cash and Cash Equivaents with Fiscal Agents
Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Accrued Interest
Intergovernmental
Specia Assessments
Internal Balances
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Prepaid Items
Unamoritized Bond | ssue Costs
Investment in Joint Venture
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net
Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Contracts Payable
Accrued Wages and Benefits
Intergovernmental Payable
Matured Interest Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Claims Payable
Deferred Revenue
Unearned Revenue
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Y ear
DueIn More Than One Y ear
Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Other Purposes
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$11,087,573 $3,175,591 $14,263,164
10,939 0 10,939
128 947,221 947,349
3,272,297 0 3,272,297
457,807 4,278,272 4,736,079
16,472 0 16,472
1,139,528 0 1,139,528
622,149 0 622,149
115,474 (115,474) 0
243,905 655,994 899,899
80,635 55,703 136,338
0 198,662 198,662
0 3,605,541 3,605,541
4,215,861 1,516,371 5,732,232
26,639,450 38,100,528 64,739,978
47,902,218 52,418,409 100,320,627
309,619 1,458,941 1,768,560
157,572 0 157,572
227,919 198,951 426,870
336,729 186,100 522,829
128 1,344 1,472
149,161 36,670 185,831
490,411 0 490,411
1,770,149 0 1,770,149
138,916 0 138,916
451,437 571,930 1,023,367
3,093,768 11,418,047 14,511,815
7,125,809 13,871,983 20,997,792
28,849,545 29,136,899 57,986,444
1,285,618 0 1,285,618
2,756,497 0 2,756,497
5,224,498 0 5,224,498
2,660,251 9,409,527 12,069,778
$40,776,409 $38,546,426 $79,322,835
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City of Wadsworth, Ohio

Medina County

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changesin Net Assets

Chargesfor Operating Grants ~ Capital Grants Governmental Business-Type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services and Sales and Contributions and Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental Activities
General Government $3,422,001 $906,987 $34,254 $44,534 ($2,436,226) $0 ($2,436,226)
Security of Persons and Property 5,864,968 634,961 157,530 0 (5,072,477) 0 (5,072,477)
Public Services 135 0 0 0 (135) 0 (135)
Public Health 145,643 9,599 1,430 0 (134,614) 0 (134,614)
Leisure Time Services 2,023,707 688,927 263,286 46,996 (1,024,498) 0 (1,024,498)
Community and Economic Development 478,550 27,191 1,998 240,044 (209,317) 0 (209,317)
Public Works 30,140 1,029,930 0 0 999,790 0 999,790
Transportation 2,512,197 7,720 1,100 0 (2,503,377) 0 (2,503,377)
Intergovernmental 16,529 163 10,868 0 (5,498) 0 (5,498)
Interest and Fiscal Charges 146,971 0 0 0 (146,971) 0 (146,971)
Total Governmental Activities 14,640,841 3,305,478 470,466 331,574 (10,533,323) 0 (10,533,323)
Business-TypeActivities
Electric 23,589,034 21,950,840 0 0 0 (1,638,194) (1,638,194)
Sanitation 1,284,315 1,585,439 0 0 0 301,124 301,124
Sewer 2,497,533 3,152,300 0 0 0 654,767 654,767
Telecom 10,344 0 0 0 0 (10,344) (10,344)
Water 2,401,418 2,061,048 0 0 0 (340,370) (340,370)
Total Business-Type Activities 29,782,644 28,749,627 0 0 0 (1,033,017) (1,033,017)
Totals $44,423,485 $32,055,105 $470,466 $331,574 (10,533,323) (1,033,017) (11,566,340)
General Revenues:
Property Taxes Levied For:
General Purposes 947,379 0 947,379
Capital Projects 449,355 0 449,355
Special Revenue 726,939 0 726,939
Income Taxes 5,422,294 0 5,422,294
Grants and Entitlements not Restricted to Specific Programs 3,447,008 0 3,447,008
Investment Earnings 76,320 530,796 607,116
Other Income 8,251 0 8,251
Transfers 2,325 (2,325) 0
Total General Revenues 11,079,871 528,471 11,608,342
Changein Net Assets 546,548 (504,546) 42,002
Net Assets Beginning of Year 40,229,861 39,050,972 79,280,833
Net Assets End of Year $40,776,409 $38,546,426 $79,322,835

See accompanying notesto the basic financial statements.
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City of Wadsworth, Ohio
Medina County

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2004

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivaentsin
Segregated Accounts
Cash and Cash Equivaents With Fiscal Agents
Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Interfund
Accrued Interest
Intergovernmental
Specia Assessments
Interfund Notes
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Prepaid Items

Total Assets

Liabilitiesand Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Contracts Payable
Accrued Wages and Benefits
Intergovernmental Payable
Matured Interest Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Interfund Payable
Deferred Revenue
Unearned Revenue
Interfund Notes Payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Prepaid Items
Interfund Notes
Debt Service Principal

Unreserved, Undesignated, Reported in:
Genera Fund
Specid Revenue Funds
Capital Projects Funds

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Non-Major Tota
Income Governmental Governmental
Generd Tax Funds Funds
$3,026,174 $174,031 $7,400,854 $10,601,059
10,939 0 0 10,939
0 0 128 128
909,384 1,332,002 1,030,911 3,272,297
82,416 0 375,391 457,807
235,700 0 0 235,700
16,472 0 0 16,472
612,132 0 527,396 1,139,528
0 0 622,149 622,149
281,940 16,156 195,244 493,340
1,333 0 198,109 199,442
62,168 471 17,996 80,635
$5,238,658 $1,522,660 $10,368,178 $17,129,496
$51,025 $34,652 $223,942 $309,619
0 0 157,572 157,572
151,828 1,946 74,145 227,919
236,311 1,063 94,431 331,805
0 0 128 128
0 0 474 474
0 0 235,700 235,700
1,333,514 431,628 2,013,138 3,778,280
0 0 138,916 138,916
0 0 43,545 43,545
1,772,678 469,289 2,981,991 5,223,958
411,765 0 790,039 1,201,804
62,168 471 17,996 80,635
281,940 16,156 195,244 493,340
0 0 662,969 662,969
2,710,107 0 0 2,710,107
0 1,036,744 3,491,658 4,528,402
0 0 2,228,281 2,228,281
3,465,980 1,053,371 7,386,187 11,905,538
$5,238,658 $1,522,660 $10,368,178 $17,129,496

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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City of Wadsworth, Ohio

Medina County

Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balancesto
Net Assets of Governmental Activities

December 31, 2004

Total Governmental Funds Balances $11,905,538

Amounts reported for governmental activitiesin the
statement of net assets are different because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the funds

Land 3,960,515
Construction in Progress 255,346
Land Improvements (Net of Depreciation) 891,407
Buildings (Net of Depreciation) 4,873,818
Vehicles (Net of Depreciation) 1,307,952
Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures (Net of Depreciation) 738,139
Infrastructure (Net of Depreciation) 18,650,898
Total 30,678,075

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and therefore
are deferred in the funds:

Property Taxes 171,260
Income Taxes 430,514
Other Taxes 784,208
Specia Assessments 622,149
Total 2,008,131

Aninternal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of insurance to individual
funds, the assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included in governmental
activitiesin the statement of net assets

Buildings (Net of Depreciation) 154,497
Vehicles (Net of Depreciation) 12,936
Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures (Net of Depreciation) 9,803
Unrestricted Net Assets 35,642
Internal payable representing chargesin excess of cost to business-type activities - prior years (135,970)
Internal receivable representing cost in excess of charges to business-type activities - current year 126,937
Total 203,845

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds:

General Obligation Bonds (1,685,000)

Specia Assessment Bonds (12,000)

Compensated Absences (1,706,036)

Pension Obligation (36,162)

Police Past Service Costs (106,007)

Internal Debt (456,621)

Accrued Interest (17,354)

Total (4,019,180)
Net Assets of Governmental Activities $40,776,409

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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City of Wadsworth, Ohio
Medina County

Statement of Revenues, Expendituresand Changesin Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Revenues

Property and Other Local Taxes
Income Taxes

Specia Assessments
Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits

Fines and Forfeitures
Intergovernmental

Interest

Rent

Contributions and Donations
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General Government
Security of Persons and Property
Public Services
Public Health
Leisure Time Services
Community and Economic Development
Public Works
Transportation
Intergovernmental
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principa Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sour ces (Uses)
TransfersIn

Notes | ssued

Proceeds of Loans

Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance Beginning of Year

Fund Balance End of Year

Non-Major Total
Income Governmental Governmental
Genera Tax Funds Funds
$888,644 $0 $1,161,698 $2,050,342
0 5,408,970 0 5,408,970
0 0 142,583 142,583
237,644 0 1,665,936 1,903,580
456,939 0 357,165 814,104
0 0 228,079 228,079
2,294,661 9,667 1,713,816 4,018,144
35,577 0 40,743 76,320
0 0 359,715 359,715
38,866 0 10,935 49,801
7,236 0 1,015 8,251
3,959,567 5,418,637 5,681,685 15,059,889
2,367,515 506,308 164,116 3,037,939
3,898,298 0 1,411,917 5,310,215
135 0 0 135
82,854 0 555 83,409
802,684 0 1,065,875 1,868,559
207,756 0 316,848 524,604
0 0 29,419 29,419
0 0 1,946,326 1,946,326
1,757 5,428 9,344 16,529
0 0 1,005,873 1,005,873
1,679 0 386,310 387,989
4,559 0 133,777 138,336
7,367,237 511,736 6,470,360 14,349,333
(3,407,670) 4,906,901 (788,675) 710,556
3,400,000 0 1,659,525 5,059,525
0 0 10,941 10,941
0 0 12,651 12,651
13,284 0 0 13,284
(1,200) (5,056,000) 0 (5,057,200)
3,412,084 (5,056,000) 1,683,117 39,201
4,414 (149,099) 894,442 749,757
3,461,566 1,202,470 6,491,745 11,155,781
$3,465,980 $1,053,371 $7,386,187 $11,905,538

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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City of Wadsworth, Ohio

Medina County

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Fundsto the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Net Changein Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $749,757

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. Thisisthe
amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlay in the current period.

Capital Outlay 691,974
Depreciation Expense (966,404)
Total (274,430)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales/disposal) isto
decrease net assets.
Loss on Sale of Capital Assets (7,687)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported
as revenues in the funds.

Property Taxes 74,445
Income Taxes 12,210
Other Taxes 139,602
Specia Assessments (100,429)
Grants (6,250)
Total 119,578

Long-term note proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but, issuing debt
increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Repayment of long-term note principal is
an expenditure in the governmental funds, but, the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the
Statement of Net Assets. Thisisthe amount by which proceeds exceeded repayment.
Internal Bonds (23,592)

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.

General Obligation Bonds 295,000
Special Assessment Bonds 12,000
Police and Fire Past Service Costs 1,679
Internal Bonds 79,310
Total 387,989

In the Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on outstanding bonds, whereas in governmental funds,
an interest expenditure is reported when due. (8,635)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities, such as compensated absences and intergovernmental
payable which represent contractually required pension contributions, do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Compensated Absences
Pension Obligation (259,189)
Total (8,882)
(268,071)
The internal service funds used by management to charge the costs of insurance and Workers' Compensation
toindividual funds are not reported in the entity-wide Statement of Activities. Governmental fund
expenditures and related internal service fund revenues are eliminated.
Change in net assets of the internal service funds (255,298)
Plus: Increase from charges to business-type activities 126,937
Net adjustments to decrease net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds to arrive at
changes in net assets of governmental activities. (128,361)

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $546.548

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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City of Wadsworth, Ohio
Medina County

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changesin
Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual

General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Revenues

Property and Other Local Taxes
Charges for Services

Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental

Interest

Contributions and Donations
Refunds

Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General Government
Security of Persons and Property
Public Services
Public Health
Leisure Time Services
Community and Economic Development
Intergovernmental
Debt Service:
Principal Retirements
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sour ces (Uses)
TransfersIn

Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets
AdvancesIn

Transfers Out

Advances Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Fiscal Y ear
Prior Fiscal Y ear Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance at End of Fiscal Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Fina Budget
Over
Origind Find Actua (Under)

$920,400 $920,400 $888,644 ($31,756)
172,527 323,018 259,212 (63,806)
300,425 562,480 447,524 (114,956)
1,323,073 2,498,655 2,289,116 (209,539)
15,782 15,782 46,211 30,429
11,862 13,862 33,461 19,599
141,135 141,135 121,617 (19,518)
194 194 221 27
2,885,398 4,475,526 4,086,006 (389,520
3,085,172 2,910,444 2,592,246 318,198
4,193,015 4,195,056 4,112,556 82,500
358 233 135 98
81,370 85,285 85,152 133
877,411 837,202 836,867 335
227,436 234,415 234,415 0
1,942 1,942 1,870 72
1,544 1,679 1,679 0
4,720 4,585 4,559 26
8,472,968 8,270,841 7,869,479 401,362
(5,587,570) (3,795,315) (3,783,473) 11,842
3,400,000 3,400,000 3,400,000 0
0 0 13,284 13,284
384,580 469,100 469,100 0
(15,750) (16,200) (1,200) 15,000
0 (235,700 (235,700) 0
3,768,830 3,617,200 3,645,484 28,284
(1,818,740) (178,115) (137,989) 40,126
2,538,027 2,538,027 2,538,027 0
433,817 433,817 433,817 0
$1,153,104 $2,793,729 $2,833,855 $40,126
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City of Wadsworth, Ohio

Medina County

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changesin
Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual
Income Tax

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Fina Budget
Over
Origind Find Actua (Under)

Revenues
Income Taxes $5,402,475 $5,377,066 $5,377,066 $0
Intergovernmental 2,400 9,667 9,667 0
Refunds 25 25 14 (11)
Total Revenues 5,404,900 5,386,758 5,386,747 (11)
Expenditures
Current:

General Government 455,388 558,961 512,829 46,132
Intergovernmental 0 5,428 5,428 0
Total Expenditures 455,388 564,389 518,257 46,132
Excess of Revenues (Under) Expenditures 4,949,512 4,822,369 4,868,490 46,121
Other Financing Sour ces
Transfers Out (5,056,000) (5,056,000) (5,056,000) 0
Total Other Financing Sources (5,056,000) (5,056,000) (5,056,000) 0
Net Change in Fund Balance (106,488) (233,631) (187,510) 46,121
Fund Balance at Beginning of Fiscal Year 375,019 375,019 375,019 0
Prior Fiscal Y ear Encumbrances Appropriated 514 514 514 0
Fund Balance at End of Fiscal Year $269,045 $141,902 $188,023 $46,121

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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City of Wadsworth, Ohio
Medina County

Statement of Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

December 31, 2004

Governmental
All Other Activities -
Enterprise Internal Service
Sawer Water Electric Funds Totals Funds
Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $1,754,261 $461,441 $244,085 $715,804  $3,175,591 $486,514
Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agents 0 1,344 945,877 0 947,221 0
Materials and Supplies Inventory 2,989 128,524 524,481 0 655,994 44,463
Receivables:
Accounts 465,999 330,984 3,225,807 255,482 4,278,272 0
Prepaid Items 9,306 12,856 26,663 6,878 55,703 0
Total Current Assets 2,232,555 935,149 4,966,913 978,164 9,112,781 530,977
Noncurrent Assets:
Unamortized Bond Issue Costs 0 0 198,662 0 198,662 0
Interfund Notes Receivable 0 163,940 590,760 0 754,700 0
Investment in Joint Venture 0 0 3,605,541 0 3,605,541 0
Interfund Bonds Receivable 0 68,482 256,806 0 325,288 0
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets 113,795 269,435 1,132,337 804 1,516,371 0
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 5,123,263 9,689,865 22,746,817 640,583 38,100,528 177,236
Total Noncurrent Assets 5,237,058 10,091,722 28,530,923 641,387 44,501,090 177,236
Total Assets 7,469,613 11,026,871 33,497,836 1,619,551 53,613,871 708,213
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 28,504 35,896 1,391,327 3,214 1,458,941 0
Accrued Wages and Benefits 39,887 37,720 111,065 10,279 198,951 0
Intergovernmental Payable 26,476 33,671 108,088 17,865 186,100 4,924
Matured Interest Payable 0 1,344 0 0 1,344 0
Accrued Interest Payable 0 5,818 23,179 7,673 36,670 0
Unamortized Premium on Bonds 0 0 61,979 0 61,979 0
Claims Payable 0 0 0 0 0 490,411
Compensated Absences Payable 23,631 22,264 92,235 3,800 141,930 0
Revenue Bonds Payable 0 0 430,000 0 430,000 0
Total Current Liabilities 118,498 136,713 2,217,873 42,831 2,515,915 495,335
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Interfund Note Payable 0 533,295 293,225 377,975 1,204,495 0
Compensated Absences Payable -
Net of Current Portion 281,631 264,351 715,307 44,779 1,306,068 0
Revenue Bonds Payable - Net of Current Portion 0 0 10,050,000 0 10,050,000 0
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 281,631 797,646 11,058,532 422,754 12,560,563 0
Total Liabilities 400,129 934,359 13,276,405 465,585 15,076,478 495,335
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 5,237,058 9,859,300 13,399,154 641,387 29,136,899 177,236
Unrestricted 1,832,426 233,212 6,822,277 512,579 9,400,494 35,642
Total Net Assets $7,069,484 $10,092,512 $20,221,431 $1,153,966 38,537,393 $212,878
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of Internal Service Fund activities related to Enterprise Funds 9,033

Net Assets of Business-Type Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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City of Wadsworth, Ohio
Medina County

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changesin Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Operating Revenues
Chargesfor Services
Tap-In Fees

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personal Services

Operations and Maintenance
Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies
Clams

Intergovernmental
Depreciation

Capital Outlay

Other

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Oper ating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest
Investment in Joint Venture
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Transfers

Transfers Out

Changein Net Assets

Net Assets at Beginning of Year

Net Assets at End of Year

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of Internal Service Fund activities related to Enterprise Funds (126,937)

Change in Net Assets of Business-Type Activities ($504,546)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Governmental
All Other Activities -
Enterprise Internal Service
Sewer Water Electric Funds Totals Funds

$3,152,300 $2,061,048  $21,950,840 $1,585,439  $28,749,627 $2,431,733
0 0 0 0 0 250
3,152,300 2,061,048 21,950,840 1,585,439 28,749,627 2,431,983
1,137,314 1,403,365 3,533,938 378,261 6,452,878 12,090
0 0 699,108 0 699,108 0

855,683 429,453 15,618,530 744,023 17,647,689 288,616
162,817 264,294 184,376 68,397 679,884 279,629

0 0 0 0 0 2,096,077

0 0 1,108,974 0 1,108,974 0

142,728 261,467 1,497,453 84,331 1,985,979 10,869

0 0 298,036 0 298,036 0

1,765 706 72 6 2,549 0
2,300,307 2,359,285 22,940,487 1,275,018 28,875,097 2,687,281
851,993 (298,237) (989,647) 310,421 (125,470) (255,298)

0 40,274 159,157 0 199,431 0

0 0 331,365 0 331,365 0
(182,021) (18,837) (503,999) (12,699) (717,556) 0
0 0 (63,054) 0 (63,054) 0
(182,021) 21,437 (76,531) (12,699) (249,814) 0
669,972 (276,800) (1,066,178) 297,722 (375,284) (255,298)
0 0 (2,325) 0 (2,325) 0

669,972 (276,800) (1,068,503) 297,722 (377,609) (255,298)
6,399,512 10,369,312 21,289,934 856,244 468,176
$7,069,484  $10,092512  $20,221,431 $1,153,966 $212,878



City of Wadsworth, Ohio

Medina County

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Cash Flowsfrom Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers

Cash Payments to Employees for Services
Cash Payments for Goods and Services
Cash Paymentsfor Claims

Other Operating Expenses
Intergovernmental Expenses

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Cash Flowsfrom Noncapital Financing Activities
Operating Transfers Out

Interfund Notes Receivable

Interfund Notes Receivable Repaid from Other Funds
Interfund Bond Receivable

Interfund Bonds Receivable Repaid from Other Funds
Proceeds of Internal Notes

Repayment of Internal Notes

Interest Payments

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flowsfrom Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Acquisition of Capital Assets

Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets

Principal Payments

Interest Payments

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Capital and
Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on Investments
Investment in Joint Venture

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of Y ear

Cash and Cash Equivalents End of Y ear

Reconciliation of Operating Income (L 0ss) to Net
Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Operating Income (L oss)

Adjustmentsto Reconcile Operating Income (L 0ss) to
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
Depreciation
Work in Progress Inventory Not Capitalized
(Increase) Decreasein Operating Assets:
Accounts Receivable
Prepaid Items
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Increase (Decr ease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages and Benefits
Compensated Absences Payable
Intergovernmental Payable
Claims Payable

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activity
Total
All Other Enterprise Internal

Sewer Water Electric Enteprise Funds Funds Service Funds
$3,018,292 $2,016,940 $21,523,042 $1,569,458 $28,127,732 $2,448,434
(1,161,210) (1,403,224) (5,015,459) (624,729) (8,204,622) (7,166)
(1,205,716) (662,885) (14,985,398) (810,018) (17,664,017) (588,584)
0 0 0 0 0 (1,717,061)

(1,765) (706) (72) (6) (2,549) 0

0 0 (1,108,974) 0 (1,108,974) 0
649,601 (49,875) 413,139 134,705 1,147,570 135,623
0 0 (2,325) 0 (2,325) 0

0 (163,940) (590,760) 0 (754,700) 0

111,388 101,262 610,103 81,010 903,763 0
0 (68,482) (256,806) 0 (325,288) 0

43,942 39,947 240,680 31,958 356,527 0

0 533,295 293,225 377,975 1,204,495 0

0 (571,900) (411,336) (236,250) (1,219,486) 0

0 (17,157) 0 0 (17,157) 0

155,330 (146,975) (117,219) 254,693 145,829 0

0 (25,977) (572,061) (195,580) (793,618) 0

9,600 0 513 0 10,113 0
(303,419) 0 (419,167) 0 (722,586) 0
(182,021) 0 (492,116) (7,088) (681,225) 0
(475,840) (25,977) (1,482,831) (202,668) (2,187,316) 0
0 40,274 156,206 0 196,480 0

0 0 5,743 0 5,743 0

0 40,274 161,949 0 202,223 0
329,091 (182,553) (1,024,962) 186,730 (691,694) 135,623
1,425,170 643,994 1,269,047 529,074 3,867,285 350,891
$1,754,261 $461,441 $244,085 $715,804 $3,175,591 $486,514
$851,993 ($298,237) ($989,647) $310,421 ($125,470) ($255,298)
142,728 261,467 1,497,453 84,331 1,985,979 10,869

0 0 694,713 0 694,713 0
(134,008) (44,108) (427,798) (15,981) (621,895) 16,451
116 (572) (883) (315) (1,654) 0
(1,085) 1,367 (194,143) 0 (193,861) (20,339)
(169,632) 20,137 129,781 (50,177) (69,891) 0
4,620 16,320 5,996 (94,790) (67,854) 0
(42,923) (9,489) (296,772) (102,437) (451,621) 0
(2,208) 3,240 (5,561) 3,653 (876) 4,924

0 0 0 0 0 379,016
(202,392) 248,362 1,402,786 (175,716) 1,273,040 390,921
$649,601 ($49,875) $413,139 $134,705 $1,147,570 $135,623
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City of Wadsworth, Ohio

Medina County

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Fund

December 31, 2004

Assets

Current Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivaentsin Segregated Accounts
Cash and Cash Equivalents With Fiscal Agent

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivaents

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Current Liabilities:
Undistributed Monies
Retainage Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets:
Refundable Deposits

Total Liabilities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Agency

$99,793
946,961
138,481

1,185,235

301,021
301,021

__ 91486256

139,269
1,045,966

1,185,235

301,021

$1,486,256
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CITY OF WADSWORTH, OHIO

MEDINA COUNTY

NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EORTHEF YFAR FNDFD DFCFMBFR 31, 2004

NOTE 1-DESCRIPTION OF THE CITY AND REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Wadsworth, Ohio, (the City) was incorporated in 1866 under the laws of the State of Ohio. The City
operates under the Mayor-Council form of government.

For financid reporting purposes, the City's basic financid dtatements include dl funds, agencies, boards,
commissions and departments for which the City is financidly accountable. Financiad accountability, as defined by
the Governmenta Accounting Standards Board (GASB)'s Statement No. 14, “The Financia Reporting Entity”,
exigs if the City gppoints a voting mgority of an organization’s governing board and is ether able to impose its will
on that organization or there is a potentid for the organization to provide specific financia benefits to, or impose
specific burdens on, the City. The City may dso be financidly accountable for governmenta organizations with a
separately elected governing board, a governing board appointed by another government, or a jointly appointed
board that is fiscdly dependent on the City. The City dso took into consideration other organizations for which the
nature and sgnificance of ther rdationship with the City are such that excluson would cause the City’s basic
financid gatements to be mideading or incomplete.

The City provides various services and conggts of many different activities and smadler accounting entities. These
include police and fire-fighting forces, emergency medica services, sawage and water treatment plants, an dectric
utility, a cable utility, an internet utility, a street maintenance department, a parks and recregation system, a
community access televison program, a trash collection service, an arport, planning and zoning, and a staff to

provide the necessary support for these services. The City aso includes a municipa court with a jurisdiction

extending beyond the boundaries of the City. These service departments and the Wadsworth Municipa Court are
included as part of the primary reporting entity.

The City is associated with the Ohio Municipa Electric Generation Agency Joint Venture 1, 2, 5 and 6 and the
Woodlawvn Union Cemetery, dl of which are joint ventures. The City is dso associated with the Municipa Energy
Services Agency which is defined as ajointly governed organization. These organizations are presented in Notes 22
and 23.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financid statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with generaly accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as gpplied to governmenta units. The Governmenta Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmenta accounting and financid reporting principles. The City dso
goplies Financid Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations issued on or before
November 30, 1989, to its governmental and business-type activities and proprietary funds provided they do not
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The City has dected not to goply FASB statements and
interpretations issued after November 30, 1989. The more sgnificant of the City’s accounting policies are described
below.
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CITY OF WADSWORTH, OHIO

MEDINA COUNTY

NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EORTHEF YFAR FNDFD DFCFMBFR 31, 2004

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

A.

Basis Of Presentation

The City’s basic financid statements congst of government-wide statements, including a Statement of Net
Assts and a Statement of Activities, and fund financia statements which provide a more detailed level of
financid informetion.

: -wide Finandial <

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display information about the City asawhole.
These gatements include the financid activities of the primary government, except for fiduciary funds. The
activity of the internd service fund are diminated to avoid “doubling up” revenues and expenses. The
datements digtinguish between those activities of the City that are governmental and those that are
considered business-type activities.

The Statement of Net Assats presents the financid condition of the governmental and business-type
activities of the City a year-end. The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct
expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the City’s governmenta activities and for
the business-type activities of the City. Direct expenses are those that are specificaly associated with a
sarvice, program or department and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues
include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program, grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operationa or capital requirements of a particular program
and interest earned on grants that is required to be used to support a particular program. Revenues which
are not classfied as program revenues are presented as generd revenues of the City, with certain limited
exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each
business ssgment or governmenta function is sdlf-financing or draws from the generd revenues of the City.

| Financidl <

During the year, the City segregates transactions related to certain City functions or activities in separate
funds in order to ad financid management and to demondirate legd compliance. Fund financid statements
are desgned to present financid information of the City at this more detalled levd. The focus of
governmenta and proprietary fund financid statementsis on mgor funds. Each mgor fund is presented ina
separate column. Nonmgor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. The internd service
funds are presented in a single column on the face of the proprietary fund statements. Fiduciary funds are

reported by type.
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CITY OF WADSWORTH, OHIO

MEDINA COUNTY

NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EORTHEF YFAR FNDFD DFCFMBFR 31, 2004

NOTE 2- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B.

Fund Accounting

The City uses funds to maintain its financia records during the year. A fund is defined as a fiscd and
accounting entity with a sdf baancing st of accounts. There are three categories of funds. governmentd,
proprietary and fiduciary. The following categories and fund types are used by the City:

Governmental Funds

Governmentd  funds are those through which most governmental functions typicdly are financed.
Governmenta fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and baances of current financia resources.
Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmenta funds according to the purposes for which they
may or must be used. Current ligbilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference
between governmenta fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund baance. The following are the City’s
major governmenta funds:

Generd Fund - The agenerd fund accounts for al financia resources except those required to be
accounted for in another fund. The cenerd fund balance is available to the City for any purpose
provided it is expended or transferred accordina to the charter of the City of Wadsworth and/or the
generd laws of Ohio.

Income Tax Fund - The Income Tax specid revenue fund accounts for dl revenues and expenses
relative to the collection of income tax.

Other governmentd funds of the City are used to account for grants and other resources whose use is
restricted to a particular purpose.

Proprietary Eunds

Proprietary fund reporting focuses on changes in net assets, financid position and cash flows. Proprietary
funds are classfied as ether enterprise or internd service,

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds may be used to account for any activity for which afeeis
charged to external users for goods or services. The following are the City’ s mgor enterprise funds.

Sewer Enterprise Fund - The sewer enterprise fund accounts for the provison of sanitary sewer
sarvice to the residents and commercia users located within the City.

Water Enterprise Fund - The water enterprise fund accounts for the provison of water trestment
and digtribution to its resdentid and commercid users located within the City.
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CITY OF WADSWORTH, OHIO
MEDINA COUNTY
NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Electric Enterprise Fund - The dectric enterprise fund accounts for the cost of operating the
municipally-owned dectric utility and the related revenue from charges for services.

Internal Service Funds - Interna service funds account for the financing of services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis.
The City’ sinterna service fund reports on a salf-insurance program for employee medica benefits.

i I

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. The fiduciary fund category is split
into four classficaions. penson trust funds, invesment trust funds, private-purpose trust funds and agency
funds. Trugt funds are used to account for assets held by the City under a trust agreement for individuas,
private organizations, or other governments and are therefore not avallable to support the City’s own
programs. The City does not have trust funds. The agency funds account for municipal court collections that
are didributed to various locd governments maintaining the law library and asssting in payment of
individuas utilities. The City’s agency funds are cugtodid in nature (assets equd ligbilities) and do not
involve measurement of results of operations.

C. Measurement Focus
WideE i
The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus.
All assets and dl liabilities associated with the operation of the City are included on the Statement of Net
Assets.
| Finencial
All governmenta fund types are accounted for usng a flow of current financia resources measurement

focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and currert ligbilities are generdly included on the
balance shest.
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CITY OF WADSWORTH, OHIO
MEDINA COUNTY
NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Baances reports on the sources (i.e,
revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e, expenditures and other financing uses) of current
financia resources. This gpproach differs from the manner in which the governmentd activities of the
government-wide financid datements are prepared. Governmental fund financid statements therefore
include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relaionship between the government-
wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

Like the government-wide statements, al proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. All assets and dl liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are
included on the statement of net assets. The Statement of Changes in Fund Net Assets presents increases
(i.e, revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in total net assets. The Statement of Cash Flows provides
information about how the City finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

D. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financid records and reported on the
financid datements. Government-wide financid Staements are prepared usng the accrud basis of
accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrua basis of accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary
funds aso use the accrua basis of accounting. Differences in the accrud and modified accrud bads of
accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred revenue and in the presentation of
expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentidly equd

vaue, is recorded on the accrud basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrua bass,
revenue is recorded in the fiscd year in which the resources are measurable and become available.

Avallable means that the resources will be collected within the current fisca year or are expected to be
collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscd year. For the City, available
means expected to be received within sixty days of year-end.
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CITY OF WADSWORTH, OHIO

MEDINA COUNTY

NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EORTHEF YFAR FNDFD DFCFMBFR 31, 2004

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Nonexchange transactions, in which the City receives vaue without directly giving equd vaue in return,
include income taxes, property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrud bas's, revenue from
income taxes is recognized in the period in which the income is earned. Revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the year for which the taxes are levied (See Note 8). Revenue from grants, entitlements and
donations is recognized in the year in which dl digibility requirements have been satidfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be
used or the year when use is fird permitted, matching requirements, in which the City must provide locd
resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are
provided to the City on a reimbursement bass. On a modified accrud bass, revenue from nonexchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrua basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and
avalable a year-end: income tax, state-levied locdly shared taxes (including gasoline tax), fines and
forfeitures, interedt, tuition, grants, fees and rentdls.

Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied.

Property taxes for which there is an enforcegble legd clam as of December 31, 2004, but which were
levied to finance year 2005 operations, have been recorded as deferred revenue. Specia assessments not
received within the available period and grants and entitlements received before the digibility requirements
are met are also recorded as deferred revenue.

On governmenta fund financid statements, receivables that will not be collected within the available period
have also been reported as deferred revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrud basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred.

The measurement focus of governmenta fund accounting is on decreases in net financid resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generdly recognized in the accounting period in

which the rdated fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of cogt, such as depreciation and
amortization, are not recognized in governmenta funds.

29



CITY OF WADSWORTH, OHIO
MEDINA COUNTY
NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E.

Budgetaries

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and entails the preparation of
budgetary documents within an established timetable. The mgjor documents prepared are the Tax Budget,
the Certificate of Estimated Resources, and the Annua Appropriation Ordinance, dl of which are prepared
on the budgetary basis of accounting. The Certificate of Estimated Resources and the Annual Appropriation
Ordinance are subject to amendment throughout the year with the legd redriction that appropriations
cannot exceed estimated resources, as certified. All funds, other than agency funds, are legdly required to
be budgeted and appropriated. The legd level of budgetary control is a the fund level. Any budgetary
modifications a this level may only be made by resolution of the City Council.

Tax Budget In duly, the City Adminigtration presents the annua Tax Budget for the following year to City
Council for consgderation and passage. The adopted budget is submitted to the County Auditor, as
Secretary of the County Budget Commission, by July 20 of each year, for the period January 1 to
December 31 of the following year. The City of Wadsworth obtained an extenson of 30 days from the
Budget Commission.

Estimated Resources The County Budget Commisson determines if the budget substantiates a need to
levy dl or part of previoudy authorized taxes and reviews estimated revenue. The Commission certifies its
actions to the City by September 1. As part of this certification, the City receives the officid Certificate of
Estimated Resources, which states the projected revenue of each fund. Prior to December 31, the City
must revise its budget so that the total contemplated expenditures from any fund during the ensuing year will
not exceed the amount available as stated in the Certificate of Estimated Resources. The revised budget
then serves as the basis for the Annua Appropriation Ordinance. On or about January 1, the Certificate of
Estimated Resources is amended to include unencumbered fund baances at December 31 of the preceding
year. The Certificate may be further amended during the yeer if the Finance Director determines, and the
Budget Commission agrees, that an estimate needs to be ether increased or decreased. The amounts
reported on the budgetary statements reflect the amounts in the find amended officid Certificate of
Estimated Resourcesissued during 2004.

Appropriations For management, a temporary appropriation ordinance to control expenditures may be
passed on or about January 1 of each year for the period January 1 to March 31. The Annud
Appropriation Ordinance must be passed by April 1 of each year for the period January 1 to December 31.
Appropriations by fund must be within the estimated resources as certified by the County Budget
Commission, and the tota of expenditures and encumbrances may not exceed the appropriations a any
level of control. Any revisons thet dter the appropriations of afund must first be gpproved by City Council.
Council may pass supplemental fund gppropriations so long as the totd appropriations by fund does not
exceed the amounts set forth in the most recent Certificate of Estimated Resources.
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CITY OF WADSWORTH, OHIO
MEDINA COUNTY
NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Forma budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for dl funds
congstent with statutory provisons. Appropriation amounts are as origindly adopted, or as amended by
City Council throughout the year by supplemental appropriations which ether redlocate or increase the
origina appropriation amounts. During the year, supplementa appropriation measures were legdly enacted;
however, none of these amendments were significant. The budgetary figures which gppear in the atements
of budgetary comparisons, represent the final appropriation amounts, including &l amendments and
modifications.

Encumbrances As part of forma budgetary control, purchase orders, contracts and other commitments
for the expenditure of monies are recorded as the equivaent of expenditures on the non- GAAP budgetary
basis in order to reserve that portion of the applicable gppropriation and to determine and maintain legd
compliance. The Ohio Revised Code prohibits expenditures plus encumbrances from exceeding
gopropriations a the legd leve of budgetary control. On the GAAP badis, encumbrances outstanding at
year end are reported as reservations of fund balances for subsequent-year expenditures for governmental
funds and reported in the notes to the basic financial statements for the proprietary funds.

Lapsing of Appropriations At the close of each year, the unencumbered balance of each appropriation
reverts to the respective fund from which it was appropriated and becomes subject to future appropriations.
The encumbered appropriation balance is carried forward to the succeeding year and is not reappropriated.

F. Cash, Cash Equivalents and I nvestments

To improve cash management, cash received by the City is pooled. Monies for dl funds, including the
proprietary funds, are maintained in this pool. Individud fund integrity is maintained through City records.
Each fund's interest in the pool is presented as “Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivdents’ on the
balance shest.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows and for presentation on the Statement of Net Assets/Balance
Shedt, investments with origina maturities of three months or less a the time they are purchased by the City
and investments of the cash management pool are considered to be cash equivaents. Investments with a
meaturity of more than three months are reported as investments. Nonparticipating investment contracts such
as overnight repurchase agreements and nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are reported at cost.
Investments other than nonparticipating investment contracts, are reported at fair vaue which is based on
quoted market prices.
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CITY OF WADSWORTH, OHIO
MEDINA COUNTY
NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The City has invested funds in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio). STAR Ohioisan
investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office, which dlows governments within the State to
pool their funds for invesment purposes. STAR Ohio & not registered with the SEC as an investment
company, but does operate in a manner consstent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940.
Investments in STAR Ohio are vdued a STAR Ohio’'s share price which is the price the investment could
be sold for on December 31, 2004.

Following Ohio statutes, the City has, by ordinance, specified the funds to receive an alocation of interest
earnings. During the year 2004, interest revenue credited to the water fund and eectric fund amounted to
$40,274 and $159,157, which includes $126,186 assigned from the City funds.

The City utilizes a fisca agent to hold bonds and coupons for retainage on congruction contracts. The
baance in this account is presented on the balance sheet as “Cash With Fiscd and Escrow Agent” and
represents deposits.

G. I nterfund Balances

On fund financid datements, interfund loans of up to one year are classfied as “Interfund Notes
Receivable/Payable’ on the balance sheet and are equaly offset by a fund balance reserve account which
indicates that they do not condtitute available expendable resources. These amounts are diminated in the
governmenta and business-type activities columns of the statement of net assats, except for any net resdud
amounts due between governmenta and business-type activities, which are presented as internd balances.

H. I nventory

On government-wide and fund financial statements, inventories are presented at cost on a firg-in, firg-out
basis and are expensed when used.

Inventory in governmental funds conssts of expendable supplies hed for consumption. The cost of
inventory items is recorded as an expenditure in the governmenta fund types and proprietary funds when
used.

l. Prepaid Items
Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond December 31, 2004, are recorded

as prepad items using the consumption method by recording a current asset for the prepaid amount and
reflecting the expenditure/expense in the year in which it was consumed.
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NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 2- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

J.

Capital Assets

Generd capital assets are those assats not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary funds.
These assets generdly result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are reported in the
governmentd activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets but are not reported in the
fund financid statements. Capital assets utilized by the proprietary funds are reported both in the business-
type activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets and in the respective funds.

All capitd assets are capitdized at cost (or estimated historica cost) and updated for additions and
retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date
received. The City maintains a capitdization threshold for dl items having a cost of five thousand dollars or
more. Exceptions exig for items such as an interest in land, which is dways capitdized. The City's
infrastructure consgts of bridges, culverts, curbs, sdewaks, storm sewers, streets, irrigation systems and
water and sawer lines. Improvements are capitdized; the costs of norma maintenance and repairs that do
not add to the value of the asset or materidly extend an asset’s life are not. Interest incurred during the
congtruction of capital assatsis aso capitalized.

All reported capita assets are depreciated except for land and construction in progress. Improvements are
depreciated over the remaining wseful lives of the rdated capitd assats. Useful lives for infrastructure were
estimated based on the City’s historical records of necessary improvements and replacement. Depreciation
is computed usng the sraight-line method over the following useful lives:

Governmenta Business- Type
Activities Activities
Description Edimated Lives Edimated Lives
Buildings 25 t0 100 years 25 t0 100 years
Equipment 3to 50 years 3to 50 years
Vehicles 8to 30 years 8to 30 years

Infrastructure 3t0 110 years 3to 110 years

Compensated Absences

The City reports compensated absences in accordance with the provisons of GASB Statement No. 16,
“Accounting for Compensated Absences’. Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are
earned if the employees’ rights to recelve compensation are attributed to services dready rendered and it is
probable that the City will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other
means. The City records a ligbility for accumulated unused vacaion time when earned for dl digible
employees with more than one year of service.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Sick leave benefits are accrued as aliability using the termination method. An accrual for sck leave is made
to the extent that it is probable that benefits will result in termination payments. The liahility is an estimate
based on the City’ s past experience of making termination payments. In proprietary funds, the entire amount
of compensated absencesis reported as afund liability.

The entire compensated absence liahility is reported on the government-wide financid statements.

For governmenta funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount expected to be
paid usng expendable avallable resources. These amounts are recorded in the account “Compensated
Absences Payable’ in the fund from which the employees who have accumulated unpaid leave are paid.
The nontcurrent portion of the liability is not reported.

L. Accrued and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liahilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financia
gatements, and al payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations payable from proprietary funds are
reported on the proprietary fund financia statements.

In generd, governmental fund payables and accrued lighilities that, once incurred, are pad in a timely
manner and in full from current financia resources, are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
clams and judgments, compensated absences, and contractually required pension contributions that will be
paid from governmenta funds are reported as a liability in the fund financid statements only to the extent
that they are due for payment during the current year. Bonds, capitd leases and long-term loans are
recognized as aliability on the fund financid statements when due.

M. Fund Balance Reserves

The City records reservations for portions of fund equity which are legdly segregated for specific future use
or which do not represent available expendable resources and therefore are not available for gppropriation
or expenditure. Fund balances are reserved for encumbrances, debt service principa payments, interfund
notes and prepaids.

N. Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assetsinvested in capital assets, net of
related debt condsts of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances
of any borrowing used for the acquidition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets are
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legidation
adopted by the City or through externa restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of
other governments.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The City gpplies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted net assets are available.

0. Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operdting revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary ectivity of the
proprietary funds. For the City, these revenues include charges for services for water, sewer, sanitation and
electric services. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the good or service that is the
primary ectivity of the fund. Revenues and expenses not meeting those definitions are reported as
nonoperating.

P. Contributions of Capital

Contributions of capitd in proprietary fund financid statements arise from outsde contributions of fixed
assets or from grants or outside contributions of resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction.

Q. Interfund Activity

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statements are
reported in the same manner as genera revenues.

Exchange transactions between funds ae reported as revenues in the sdler funds and as
expenditures/expensesin the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a
requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other
financing sources/'uses in governmentd funds and after nonoperating revenues/expenses in proprietary funds.
Repayments from funds respongble for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initidly paid for
them are not presented on the financid Statements.

R. Extraordinary and Special 1tems
Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusud in nature and infrequent in occurrence.

Specid items are transactions or events that are within the control of the City Adminigtration and thet are
ether unusud in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither type of transaction occurred during 2004.
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EOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
S. Estimates

The preparation of the financid statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make etimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financid
satements and accompanying notes. Actud results may differ from those estimates.

NOTE 3— RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND PROPRIETARY STATEMENT OF
FUND NET ASSETS

Explanation of certain differences between the proprietary fund statement of net assets and the government-wide
Statement of net assets

The proprietary fund statement of net assets includes a reconciliation between net assets — total enterprise funds
and net assets of business-type activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets. The
description of the sole dement of that reconciliaion is “adjustment to reflect the consolidetion of internd service
fund activities related to enterprise funds’. The details of this $10,045 difference are as follows:

Internd receivable representing charges in excess of cost to business-type activities

- prior years $135,970
Internd receivable representing charges in excess of cost to business-type activities

- current year (126,937)
Net adjustment to increase net assets - tota enterprise fundsto arrive at net assets

- business-type activities $9,033

NOTE 4 - BUDGETARY BASI SOF ACCOUNTING

While reporting financid pogtion, results of operations and changes in fund baances on the basis of generdly
accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis as provided by law and described above is based
upon accounting for certain transactions on a bads of cash recapts, disbursements, appropriations, and
encumbrances.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actua (Non-GAAP Bass)
presented for the Generd Fund and the Income Tax Fund is presented on the budgetary bass to provide a
meeningful comparison of actua results with the budget and to demonsirate compliance with State statute. The
major differences between the budget basis and the GAAP basis are:

1 Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to when susceptible to accrud
(GAAP).

2. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget) as opposed to when the ligbility isincurred (GAAP).
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NOTE 4 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

3. Outgtanding year-end encumbrances are treated as expenditures (budget) rather than as a reservation of
fund balance (GAAP).

4. Unreported cash represents amounts received but not included as revenue on the budget basis operating
satements. These amounts are included as revenue on the GAAP basis operating statement.

5. Advances-in and advances-out are operating transactions (budget) as opposed to baance sheet
transactions (GAAP).

The following table summarizes the adjustments necessary to reconcile the GAAP bass statements to the budgetary
bass statements for the General Fund and Income Tax Fund.

Net Changesin Fund Bdance

Generd Fund Income Tax Fund
GAAP Bas's $4,414 ($149,099)
Net Adjusment for Revenue Accruas 595,539 (31,890)
Net Adjustment for Expenditure Accruds (1,200,729) (8,686)
Encumbrances 462,787 2,165
Budget Basis ($137,989) ($187,510)

NOTE 5— ACCOUNTABILITY AND COMPLIANCE
Deficit Fund BA

Thefollowing funds had a deficit in fund balance a December 31, 2004:

Fund Dfiait
Capitd Project Funds
CDBG ($814)
CHIP Grant Fisca Y ear 2003 (10,269)

Those funds complied with Ohio State law, which does not permit cash basis deficits. The Generd Fund advances
or transfers when cash is required, not when accruas occur. The deficit fund balances resulted from adjustments for
accrued ligbilities. These deficits should be diminated by future intergovernmenta and/or specid assessments
revenues not recognized under GAAP at December 31.
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITSAND INVESTMENTS

Deposits and investments are restricted by provisons of the Ohio Revised Code. State statutes classify monies held
by the City into three categories.

1

Active deposits are public deposits necessary to meet current demands on the treasury. Such monies must
be mantained ether as cash in the City treasury, in commercia accounts payable or withdrawable on
demand, including negotiable order of withdrawa (NOW) accounts, or in money market deposit accounts.

Inactive depodts are public deposits that Council has identified as not required for use within the current
two year period of designation of depositories. Inactive deposits must either be evidenced by certificates of
deposit maturing not later than the end of the current period of designation of depositories, or by savings or
deposit accounts including, but not limited to, passbook accounts.

Interim depogits are depodits of interim monies. Interim monies are those monies which are not needed for
immediate use but which will be needed before the end of the current period of designation of depositories.
Interim deposits must be evidenced by time certificates of deposit maturing not more than one year from the
date of deposit or by savings or deposit accounts including passbook accounts.

Protection of the City’s deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), by digible
securities pledged by the financia indtitution as security for repayment, by surety company bonds deposited with the
treasurer by the financid inditution or by a single collateral pool established by the financial inditution to secure the
repayment of dl public monies deposited with the inditution.

Interim monies may be deposited or invested in the following securities:

1

United States Treasury Notes, Bills, Bonds, or any other obligation or security issued by the United States
Treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to principd or interest by the United States,

Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any federa government agency or
indrumentaity, including but not limited to, the Federd Nationd Mortgage Associaion, Federd Home
Loan Bank, Federd Farm Credit Bank, Federd Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Government National
Mortgage Association and Student Loan Marketing Association. All federal agency securities shdl be direct
issuances of federal government agencies or insgrumentaities;

Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market vaue of the securities
subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principa vaue of the agreement by at least two
percent and be marked to market daily, and that the term of the agreement must not exceed thirty days,

Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITSAND INVESTMENTS (continued)

5. No-load money market mutua funds congsting exclusvely of obligations described in divison (1) or (2) of
this section and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided that investments in securities
described in this divison are made only through digible indtitutions;

6. The State Treasurer’ s investment pool (STAR Ohio); and

7. Banker's Acceptances and Commercia Peaper notes, each with a maturity not exceeding 180 days.
Commercid Paper must be rated at the time of purchase in the highest dassfication by at least two (2)
nationaly recognized rating services. The combined total of Banker’s Acceptances and Commercid Paper
will not exceed 25% of the total portfolio at the time of purchase.

Investments in dripped principad or interest obligations reverse repurchase agreements and derivatives are
prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage and short sdlling are dso
prohibited. The City has not purchased these types of investments or issued these types of notes. An investment
must mature within five years from the date of purchase unless matched to a specific obligation or debt of the City,
and must be purchased with the expectation thet it will be held to maturity.

Payment for investments may be made only upon delivery of the securities representing the investments to the
treasurer or qualified trustee or, if the securities are not represented by a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of
trangfer from the custodian.

The following information classfies deposits and investments by categories of risk as defined in GASB Statement
No. 3 “Depodts With Financid Inditutions, Investments (Including Repurchase Agreements) and Reverse
Repurchase Agreements’.

Deposits - At year end, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $5,410,720 and the bank balance was
$6,231,341. Of the bank balance:

1 $1,458,073 was covered by federal depository insurance; and

2. $4,773,268 was uninsured and uncollaterdized. Although al State statutory requirements for the deposit of
money had been followed, non-compliance with federd requirements could potentidly subject the City to a
successful clam by the FDIC.

Investments - City invessments are required to be categorized to give an indication of the level of custodia credit
risk assumed by the City at year end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the
securities are held by the City or its agent in the City’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered
invesments for which the securities are held by the counterparty’s trust department or its agent in the City’s name.
Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or
by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name. STAR Ohio is unclassfied since it is not evidenced by
securitiesthat exist in physica or book entry form.
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITSAND INVESTMENTS (continued)

At year end, the City’ sinvestment balances were as follows:

Category Far
3 Vdue
Overnight Repurchase Agreements $1,270,025 $1,270,025
Federd Agency Securities 7,937,286 7,937,286
$9,207,311
STAR Ohio 2,089,677
Totd Investments $11,296,988

The classfication of cash and cash equivalents and investments on the basic financid statementsis based on criteria
st forth in GASB Statement No. 9, “Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and
Governmenta Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting”. A reconciliation between the classification of cash
and cash equivdents and investments on the basic financid statements and the classfication of deposits and
investments presented above per GASB Statement No. 3isasfollows:

Cash and Cash
EquivdentsDeposits Investments

GASB Statement No. 9 $16,707,708 $0
Investments of Cash Management Pool:

FNMA (4,950,548) 4,950,548

GNMA (5,602) 5,602

Overnight Repurchase Agreements (1,270,025) 1,270,025

STAR Ohio (2,089,677) 2,089,677

FHLMC (1,987,792) 1,987,792

FHLB (993,344) 993,344
GASB Statement No. 3 $5,410,720 $11,296,988

NOTE 7 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at December 31, 2004, conssted of taxes, accounts (billings for user charged services, rents and
roydties), interfund, gecid assessments, accrued interest, notes and intergovernmenta recelvables arisng from
grants, entitlements and shared revenues. Accounts, taxes, special assessments and intergovernmenta receivables
are deemed collectible in full.

No alowance for doubtful accounts have been recorded because uncollectable amounts are expected to be
inggnificant.
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NOTE 8 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes include amounts levied againgt dl red, public utility, and tangible persond property located in the
City. Property tax revenue received during 2004 for red and public utility property taxes represents collections of
the 2003 taxes. Property tax payments received during 2004 for tangible personal property (other than public utility
property) isfor 2004 taxes.

2004 real property taxes are levied after October 1, 2004, on the assessed vaue as of January 1, 2004, the lien
date. Assessed values are established by State law at 35% of appraised market value. 2004 real property taxes are
collected in and intended to finance 2005.

Public utility tangible persond property currently is assessed at varying percentages of true value; public utility red
property is assessed at 35% of true value. 2004 public utility property taxes became alien December 31, 2003, are
levied after October 1, 2004, and are collected in 2005 with rea property taxes.

2004 tangible personal property taxes are levied after October 1, 2003, on the value as of December 31, 2003.
Collections are made in 2004. Tangible persond property assessments are 25% of true value.

The full tax rate for al City operations for the year ended December 31, 2004, was $5.80 per $1,000 of assessed
vaue. The assessed values of red and tangible personal property upon which 2004 property tax receipts were
based are as follows

Totd Assessed Vdue %

Red Property Vduation:

Resdentid/Agriculture $297,485,510 71.81%

Commercid/Indugtrid/Minera 76,330,980  18.43%

Public Utilities 5,090 0.00%
Tangible Persona Property Vauation:

Generd 37,504,132 9.05%

Public Utilities 2,942,570 0.71%
Totd Vauation $414,268,282 100.00%

Red property taxes are payable annudly or semi-annudly. If paid annudly, the payment is due December 31; if
paid semi-annudly, the firg payment is due December 31 with the remainder payable by June 20. Under certain
circumgtances, State statute permits later payment dates to be established.

Tangible persond property taxes paid by multi-county taxpayers are due September 20. Single county taxpayers

may pay annudly or semi-annudly. If paid annudly, payment is due April 30; if paid semi-annudly, the firg payment
is due April 30; with the remainder payable by September 20.
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NOTE 9- INCOME TAX

The City levies and collects an income tax of 1.3% on al income earned within the City as well as on incomes of
residents earned outsde the City. In the latter case, the City dlows a credit for the tax paid to another municipality
to offset up to 1.0% of the tota rate. Residents are required to remit the remaining 0.3% to the City’ stax collection
agency. Employers within the City are required to withhold income tax on employee earnings and remit the tax to
the City at least quarterly. Withheld income taxes and other various income tax collections for 2004 received 60
days after year-end have been recognized as revenue in 2004.

Corporations and other individua taxpayers are dso billed for their estimated taxes quarterly. They must pay a
least 80% by January and mudt file afind return annudly.

Income tax revenues are distributed, as needed, to the various funds of the City pursuant to Council ordinance. In
2004 income tax revenue was didributed to the following funds Generd; Recreetion; Street; and Capitd
Improvement.

NOTE 10- NOTESRECEIVABLE

In previous years, the City made development loans from their revolving loan fund. The amount of notes receivable
at December 31, 2004 isasfollows:

Baance Baance
01/01/2004 Additions Retirements 12/31/2004
Revolving Loan Fund Rate 5% $10,113 $0 ($10,113) $0

NOTE 11 - SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

Specia assessments include annudly assessed service assessments. Service type specid assessments are levied
againg al property owners which benefit from the provided service. Specid assessments are payable by the time
and in the manner tipulated in the ng ordinance and are alien from the date of the passage of the ordinance.

The City’s specid assessments include the construction, repair or improvement of streets, sidewalks, waterlines and
public parking lots which are billed by the County Auditor and collected by the County Treasurer. The County
Auditor periodically remits these collections to the City. Specia assessments collected in one caendar year are
levied and certified in the preceding calendar year.
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NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT

A.

Ligbility Insurance

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage to or destruction of assets, errors
or omissons, and naturd disagters.

1 Blanket building and persona property insurance, with a $2,500 deductible and a $22,135,782
limit on buildings, $7,057,408 on business persona property and $91,345 on property in the open.

2. Vehicle ligbility insurance with physcd damage, comprehensve and collison subject to a
$1,000,000 limit per accident or loss. A deductible of $2,000 applies to the Pierce Fire Truck and
to the Spartan Tanker.

3. Law enforcement liability coverage with a $1,000,000 limit and a $10,000 deductible.
4. Public officids liability coverage with a $1,000,000 limit and a $10,000 deductible.

5. Umbrdlaliability coverage of $5,000,000 per occurrence and aggregate.

Workers Compensation

The City pays the State Workers Compensation System, and insurance purchasing pool, a premium based
on arate of $100 of salaries. The rate is caculated based on accident history and adminigtrative costs for
the pool. The City of Wadsworth belongs to the Ohio Rural Water Association pool and receives an extra
4% reduction for membership in the Medina County Safety Council. Managed Care is provided by Comp
Management Hedth Systems.

Hedlth Insurance

The City has eected to provide employee medical, prescription and denta benefits through a sdf-insurance
program with a Stop Loss Policy to insure againg any larger loss. The City maintains a salf-insurance fund,
number 720, to account for and finance itsrisk of loss. Stop loss coverage of $1,000,000 with an aggregate
of $2,000,000 is purchased subject to a $100,000 deductible. The Fund is financed by asessng City
Departments the amount necessary to pay al costs and maintain a reasonable carryover balance. Currently,
the Departments are assessed per each employee at the rate of $324.16 per individua coverage and
$858.59 per family coverage. Employee contributions per pay are $5.00 for single coverage and $10.00
for family. Coverageis administered by Medica Mutud, athird party adminigtrator.

The plan provides amedica plan with a $100 deductible per individua and $200 per family and subject to
a 20% co-payment for expenses out of the network.
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NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Dental Plan is subject to a $25.00 deductible and no co-payment, with a maximum coverage of $750
annually.

The City aso provides prescription drug insurance to its employees through the sdlf-insurance program. The
plan pays the cost of prescriptions with a required co-payment of $5.00 for generic drugs and $8.00 for
brand name drugs, per prescription. The Third party administrator, Paid Prescriptions, reviews the clams,
which are then paid by the City.

The clams liability of $490,411 reported in the sdf-insurance fund at December 31, 2004 is based on the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 10 “Accounting and Financid Reporting for Risk Financing and
Related Insurance Services’ which requires that a liability for unpaid clam cogts, induding estimates of
cods relating to incurred but not reported claims, be reported. The claims liability is based on an estimate
supplied by the City’s third party adminigtrator. A summary of the fund's clams liability during the past two
yearsisasfollows

Baance at Current Year Clams Baance a

Beginning of Year Clams Payments End of Year
2003 $230,173 $1,761,853 ($1,880,631) $111,395
2004 $111,395 $2,094,096 (%$1,715,080) $490,411

NOTE 13 -CAPITAL ASSETS

The capital asset balances of the governmenta activities are asfollows:

Beginning
Bdance Bdance
01/01/2004 Additions Deletions 12/31/2004
Governmental Activities
Capita Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land $3,960,515 $0 $0 $3,960,515
Congruction in Progress 0 255,346 0 255,346
Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 3,960,515 255,346 0 4,215,861
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings 7,606,368 3,799 0 7,610,167
Land Improvements 1,519,604 2,787 0 1,522,391
Vehicdes 3,624,233 10,127 (91,684) 3,542,676
Equipment 1,968,090 5,594 0 1,973,684
Infragtructure 23,797,379 414,321 0 24,211,700
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 38,515,674 436,628 (91,684) 38,860,618
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NOTE 13— CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings
Land Improvements
Vehicles
Equipment
Infrastructure
Tota Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net
Governmental Activities Capital Assats, Net

The capitd asset baances of the business-type activities are asfollows:

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land
Congruction in Progress
Infrastructure Work in Progress
Tota Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Capital Assats, Being Depreciated:
Buildings
Land Improvements
Vehicdes
Equipment
Infrastructure
Tota Capitd Assets, Being Depreciated

Beginning
Baance Badance

01/01/2004 Additions Ddeions 12/31/2004
(2,404,403) (177,449) 0 (2,581,852)
(595,896) (35,088) 0 (630,984)
(2,101,299) (204,486) 83,997 (2,221,788)
(1,077,820) (147,922) 0 (1,225,742)
(5,148,474) (412,328) 0 (5,560,802)
(11,327,892) (977,273) 83,997 (12,221,168)
27,187,782 (540,645) (7,687) 26,639,450
$31,148,297 ($285,299) ($7,687)  $30,855,311

Beginning
Baance Bdance

01/01/2004 Additions Dddions 12/31/2004
$482,260 $10,426 $0 $492,686
80,000 27,490 0 107,490
2,709,491 228,629 (2,021,925) 916,195
3,271,751 266,545 (2,021,925) 1,516,371
6,646,860 341 0 6,647,201
7,258 0 0 7,258
3,457,152 230,788 (42,000) 3,645,940
1,554,169 46,828 (20,000) 1,580,997
50,524,460 1,576,328 (156,965) 51,943,823
62,189,899 1,854,285 (218,965) 63,825,219
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NOTE 13— CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings
Land Improvements
Vehicles
Equipment
Infrastructure
Tota Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net
Business-Type Activities Capitd Assets, Net

Depreciation expense was charged to governmenta functions as follows:

Genard Government

Security of Persons and Property
Public Hedth and Wefare

Transportation

Leisure Time Activities

Tota

Beginning
Bdance Bdance
01/01/2004 Additions Ddetions 12/31/2004
(3,266,398) (132,617) 0 (3,399,015)
(726) (363) 0 (1,089)
(2,053,043) (280,553) 42,000 (2,291,596)
(769,554) (87,291) 10,400 (846,445)
(17,794,789) (1,485,155) 93,398  (19,186,546)
(23,884,510) (1,985,979) 145,798  (25,724,691)
38,305,389 (131,694) (73,167) 38,100,528
$41,577,140 $134,851 ($2,095,092) $39,616,899
$173,741
557,839
39,504
110,190
95,999
$977,273

NOTE 14 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

A. Public Employees Retirement System

All employees of the City, with the excluson of City police officers and firefighters, participate in the Ohio
Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), which administers three separate penson plans as

described below:

1 The Traditiona Penson Plan (TP) — a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit penson plan.

2. The Member-Directed Plan (MD) — a defined contribution plan in which the member invests both
member and employer contributions (employer contributions vest over five years a 20% per year).
Under the Member-Directed Plan members accumulate retirement assets equa to the vaue of
member and (vested) employer contributions plus any investment earnings thereon.
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NOTE 14 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PL ANS (continued)

3. The Combined Plan (CO) — a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. Under
the Combined Plan employer contributions are invested by the retirement system to provide a
formula retirement benefit Smilar in nature to the Traditional Plan benefit. Member contributions, the
investment of which is sdf-directed by the members, accumulate retirement assets in a manner
amilar to the Member-Directed Plan.

OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits and annua cogt of living adjustments to
members of the Traditiond Plan and Combined Plans. Members of the Member-Directed Plan do not
qudify for ancillary benefits.

Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code. The
OPERS issues a stand-done financia report. Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written
request to: Public Employees Retirement System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642 or
by caling (614)222-6705 or 1-800-222-7377.

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for member and employer contributions. For 2004,
member and employer contribution rates were consstent across dl three plans (TP, MD and CO).
Separate divisons for law enforcement and public safety exist only within the Traditiona Plan.

Plan members are required to contribute 8.50% of their annua covered salary to fund pension benefit
obligations. The City is required to contribute 13.55%. Contributions are authorized by Sate satute. The
contribution rates are determined actuaridly. The City’ s contributions for pension obligations to the OPERS
for the years ending December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $953,145, $976,036 and $830,337,
respectively, equa to the required contributions for each year. 91.47% has been contributed for 2004.

B. Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund

The City contributes to the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund (OP&F), a cost- sharing, multiple-employer
defined benefit penson plan. The OP&F provides retirement and disability benefits, annua cost-of-living
adjustments, and deeth benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisons are established by the
Ohio State Legidature and are codified in Chapter 742 of the Ohio Revised Code. OP& F issues a publicly
avalable financid report that includes financid information and required supplementary information for the
plan. That report may be obtained by writing to OP&F, 140 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-
5164.

Plan members are required to contribute 10% of their annua covered sdary, while employers are required
to contribute 19.5% and 24.0%, respectively, for police officers and firefighters. The City’s contributions
for pension obligations to the OP&F Ohio for the years ending December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were
$243,648, $300,871 and $286,487, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.
74.70% has been contributed for 2004.
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NOTE 14 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PL ANS (continued)

C.

Social Security System

All volunteer firefighters and Council members, not otherwise covered by another retirement system, are

covered by Socid Security. The City’sliability is 6.2% of wages paid.

NOTE 15-POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

A.

Public Employees Retirement System

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) adminigters three separate penson plans. the
Traditiond Penson Plan (TP) — a cost-shaing multiple-employer defined benefit penson plan; the
Member-Directed Plan (MD) — a defined contribution plan; and the Combined Plan (CO) — a cost-sharing
muitiple-employer defined benefit penson plan that has dements of both a defined benefit and defined
contribution plan.

OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and podt-retirement hedth care benefits to qudifying
members of both the Traditiond and the Combined Plans, however, hedth care benefits are not satutorily
guaranteed. Members of the Member-Directed Plan do not qudify for ancillary benefits, ncluding pos-
employment hedlth care coverage.

OPERS provides post-retirement hedth care coverage to age and service retirees with ten or more years of
qualifying Ohio service credit. Hedth care coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor recipients
is available. The hedth care coverage provided by the retirement system is consdered an Other Post-
Employment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12, “Disclosure of Information on
Post- Employment Benefits Other Than Penson Benefits by State and Locd Governmental Employers’. A
portion of each employer’s contribution to the OPERS is set aside for the funding of podt-retirement hedth
care. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employer contributions. The 2004 employer
contribution rate was 13.55% of covered payroll; 4.0% was the portion that was used to fund hedth care
for the year 2004. The City’s actud contributions for 2004 which were used to fund post-employment
benefits were $399,223.

The assumptions and calculations below were based on OPERS s latest actuaria review performed as of
December 31, 2003, include arate of return on investments of 8.0%, an annud increase in active employee
total payroll of 4.0% compounded annudly (assuming no change in the number of active employees) and an
additiona increase in total payroll over and above the 4.0% base increase of between .50% and 6.3%
based on additiona annual pay increases. Hedth care costs were assumed to increase at the projected
wage inflation rate plus an additiond factor ranging from 1.0% to 6.0% for the next eight years. In
subsequent years (nine and beyond) health care costs were assumed to increase at 4.0% (the projected
wage inflation rate).
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NOTE 15— POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

An entry-age normd actuarid cost method of vauation is used in determining the present vaue of OPEB.
The difference between assumed and actua experience (actuarid gains and losses) becomes part of the
unfunded actuarid accrued liability.

All invesments are carried at market value. For actuarid vauation purposes, a smoothed market approach
IS used. Assats are adjusted annually to reflect 25% of unredized market appreciation or depreciation on
investment assets.

OPEB’s are advance-funded on an actuaridly determined basis.

At year end 2004, the number of active contributing participants was 369,885. The actua contribution and
the actuaridly required contribution amounts are the same. OPERS's net assets available for payment of
benefits at December 31, 2003, (the latest information available) were $10.5 billion. The actuaridly accrued
liability and the unfunded actuarialy accrued liability, based on the actuarid cost method used, were $26.9
billion and $16.4 hillion, repectively.

On September 9, 2004, the OPERS Retirement Board adopted a Hedlth Care Preservation Plan (HCPP)
with an effective date of January 1, 2007. The HCPP restructures OPERS hedlth care coverage to
improve the financid solvency of the fund in response to skyrocketing hedlth care costs.

Under the HCPP, retirees digible for hedth care coverage will receive a graded monthly alocation based
on their years of service at retirement. The Plan incorporates a cafeteria approach, offering a broad range of
hedth care options that alow benefit recipients to use their monthly dlocation to purchase hedth care
coverage customized to meet their individua needs. If the monthly alocation exceeds the cost of the options
selected, the excess is deposited into a Retiree Medical Account that can be used to fund future hedth care
expenses.

B. Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund

The Ohio Police and Fire Penson Fund (OP&F) provides post-retirement health care coverage to any
person who received or is digible to receive a monthly benefit check or is a spouse or digible dependent
child of such person. An digible dependent child is any child under the age of 18 whether or not the child is
atending school or under the age of 22 if atending school full-time or on a 2/3 basis. The hedth care
coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) as
described in GASB Statement No. 12. The Ohio Revised Code provides that hedlth care cost paid from
the funds of the OP&F Ohio shdl be included in the employer’s contribution rate. The total police officer
employer contribution rate is 19.5% of covered payroll and the totd firefighter employer contribution rateis
24% of covered payroll. The City's actud contributions for 2004 which were used to fund post-
employment benefits were $149,221.
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NOTE 15— POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority alowing the OP&F Ohio's Board of Trustees to
provide hedlth care coverage to dl digible individuds.

Hedth care funding and accounting is on a pay-as-you-go bass. A percentage of covered payroll, as
defined by the Board, is used to pay retiree hedlth care expenses. The Board defined alocation was 7.75%
of covered payroll in 2003 and 2004. In addition, since July 1, 1992, most retirees have been required to
contribute a portion of the cost of their hedth care coverage through a deduction from their monthly benefit
payment. Beginning in 2001, al retirees and survivors have monthly hedlth care contributions. The OP&F's
totd hedth care expenses for the year ended December 31, 2003, (the latest information available) was
$150,853,148, which was net of member contributions of $17,207,506. The number of OP& F participants
eigible to receive hedth care benefits a of December 31, 2003, was 13,662 for police and 10,474 for
firfighters.

NOTE 16 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

City employees earn vacation and sick leave at varying rates depending on length of service and department policy.
All accumulated, unused vacation time is paid upon separation if the employee has acquired at least one year of
sarvice with the City. Accumulated, unused sick leave is paid to a retiring employee up to a maximum of 160 days.
As of December 31, 2004, the City’'s liability for compensated dosences was $1,742,196 for governmentd
activities and $1,447,998 for business-type activities.

NOTE 17— SHORT-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Changesin the short-term obligations of the City during 2004 were asfollows:

Bdance Bdance
01/01/2004 Additions Dedetions 12/31/2004
Business-Type Activities
OWDA | can
OWDA Loan from Medina County
6.65%, Due through 2005 $303,419 $0 ($303,419) $0
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NOTE 18 —-LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Interest Original

Rate I ssue Amount Date of Maturity
Governmental Activities:
1997 City Hall Construction 8.00% $3,500,000 December 1, 2009
1986 Downtown Sidewalk Improvement 9.25% 228,000 December 1, 2005
1968 Liability for Police Past Service Cost 2.36% 124,769 May 15, 2035
Business-TypeActivities:
2000 American Municipal Power - Ohio 1.65% - 5.25% 11,645,000 February 15, 2022

Long-term ligbility activity for the year ended December 31, 2004 was as follows:

Beginning Ending Amount Due
Balance Additions Deletions Balance inOne Y ear

Governmental Activities:
1997 City Hall Construction

General Obligation Bond $1,980,000 $0 ($295,000) $1,685,000 $305,000
1986 Downtown Sidewalk

Improvement Special

Assessment Bond 24,000 0 (12,000) 12,000 12,000
1968 Liability for Police

Past Service Cost 107,686 0 (1,679 106,007 1,752
Total Long-Term Debt 2,111,686 0 (308,679) 1,803,007 318,752
Intergovernmental Payable 27,283 8,879 0 36,162 3,617
Compensated Absences 1,524,831 247,748 (66,543) 1,706,036 129,068
Governmental Activities-

Long-Term Liabilities $3,663,800 $256,627 ($375,222) $3,545,205 $451,437
Business-TypeActivities:
2000 American Municipal

Power-Ohio Revenue Bonds $10,899,167 $0 ($419,167) $10,480,000 $430,000
Less Deferred Amounts:

Unamortized Premium

on Bonds 64,930 0 (2,951) 61,979 0
Total Long-Term Debt 10,964,097 0 (422,118) 10,541,979 430,000

Compensated Absences 1,899,619 253121 (704,742) 1,447,998 141,930
Business-Type -

Long-Term Liabilities $12,863,716 $253121 ($1,126,860) $11,989,977 $571,930
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Outstanding generd obligation bonds were issued to finance water treatment plant construction and renovation and
city hal congtruction and improvements. Generd obligation bonds are direct obligations of the City for which its full
faith, credit and resources are pledged and are payable from water service charges for the water trestment bonds
and from hotel/motel taxes, City income tax monies and utility service charges for the city hal congtruction bonds.

On March 1, 2003, the City of Wadsworth and American Municipal Power-Ohio, Inc. (AMP-Ohio) amended and
restated aloan agreement. In accordance with the agreement, AMP-Ohio issued $11,645,000 of bonds and loaned
the proceeds received from the bonds to the City. The loan proceeds were used to:

1 Refinance notes originaly issued to pay the cost of financing the condtruction and inddlation of various
cgpitd improvements for the municipa dectric utility and the telecommunications system of the City;

2. Providing funds for additiona improvements to the telecommunications system,

3. Fund a debt service reserve fund; and

4. Pay the costs of issuance of the 2003 bonds.

Specid assessment bonds are those which have been issued to fund various improvements within the City. A
portion of these costs have been passed aong to the property owners benefiting from the improvements. Generaly,
the property owners have the choice of paying their assessed portion in one sum at the inception of the project or in
ingtalments over a period of years, with interest. The City, however, remainsfully liable for any debt associated with
delinquent property assessments.

The liagbility for police past service codts rdates to the City’s liability to certain employees incurred prior to the
establishment of the statewide Ohio Police and Fire Penson Fund. The City is required to make payments of
approximately $6,200 annudly, which includes interest, through the year 2034. These past service codts are
payable from taxes levied on al taxable property in the City.

The annud requirements to amortize dl long-term debt outstanding as of December 31, 2004, are asfollows:
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Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

Y ear Ending
December 31, Police Past Service Cost General Obligations Special Assessments Revenue Bonds
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2005 $1,752 $4,486 $305,000 $79,825 $12,000 $1,110 $430,000 $496,155
2006 1,827 4,411 320,000 65,795 0 0 430,000 483,503
2007 1,905 4,333 335,000 50,915 0 0 445,000 468,943
2008 1,987 4,251 355,000 35,170 0 0 460,000 452,645
2009 2,072 4,166 370,000 18,130 0 0 475,000 434,873
2010 - 2014 11,775 19,415 0 0 0 0 2,685,000 1,849,810
2015 - 2019 14,532 16,658 0 0 0 0 3,435,000 1,083,862
2020 - 2024 17,932 13,258 0 0 0 0 2,120,000 192,625
2025 - 2029 22,130 9,060 0 0 0 0 0 0
2030 - 2035 30,095 3,940 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total $106,007 $83,978 $1,685,000 $249,835 $12,000 $1,110 $10,480,000 $5,462,416

NOTE 19 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Severd dams and lawsuits are pending againg the City. It is management’s opinion that the ultimate ligility will be
covered by insurance, and/or will not have amaterid effect on these basic financid statements.

Also, the City has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the
grantor agencies or their designee. These audits could lead to arequest for reimbursement to the grantor agency for
expenditures disalowed under the terms of the grant. Based on prior experience, City management believes such
disallowances, if any, will not be sgnificant.

NOTE 20— INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interna borrowings consst of interna notes and bonds issued by various funds to finance projects interndly rather
than through outsde parties. Each internad note or bond is identified as to which fund is ligble for repayment,
however, the actud borrowing comes from a pool of funds rather than specific funds. The borrowings pay interest
to specified funds based on the percentage of fund balances.
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NOTE 20— INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Following isadetall of Interfund Notes Recelvable/Payable, by debt issue, during 2004:

Baance Baance

01/01/2004 Additions Ddetions 12/31/2004
Governmental Funds:
Non-Major Governmental Funds
1996 Waterdide
Issue: 04/02, Maturity 04/03, Rate 4.00% $6,875 $0 ($6,875) $0
1997 Sdlt Shed
Issue: 11/02, Maturity 11/03, Rate 4.00% 23,750 0 (11,875) 11,875
2002 Durling Drive Improvements
Issue: 07/02, Maturity 07/03, Rate 4.00% 21,620 650 0 22,270
2002 Sidewak Improvement
Issue: 10/03, Maturity 10/04, Rate 3.00% 27,000 0 (27,000) 0
2004 Street Improvement
Issue: 09/04, Maturity 09/05, Rate 4.00% 0 9,400 0 9,400
Tota Governmental Funds 79,245 10,050 (45,750) 43,545
Proprietary Funds:
Water Fund
1997 Development of Water Wells
Issue: 09/02, Maturity 09/03, Rate 4.00% 82,650 0 (16,530) 66,120
1997 Bird Street Tank Painting
Issue: 10/02, Maturity 10/03, Rate 4.00% 11,750 0 (5,875) 5,875
2001 Lagoon Restoration
Issue 11/02, Maturity 11/03, Rate 4.00% 112,500 0 (18,750) 93,750
2002 Water Supply Prof. Services
Issue: 03/02, Maturity 04/03, Rate 4.00% 85,000 0 (85,000) 0
2002 Water Trestment Plant
Issue: 04/02, Maturity 04/03, Rate 4.00% 280,000 0 (40,000) 240,000
2004 Rogues Hollow Well
Issue: 12/04, Maturity 12/05, Rate 4.00% 0 127,550 0 127,550
Total Water 571,900 127,550 (166,155) 533,295
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NOTE 20— INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Badance Baance

01/01/2004 Additions Deetions 12/31/2004
Electric Fund
1996 Cable TV Headend
Issue; 03/02, Maturity 03/03, Rate 4.00% 271,650 0 (271,650) 0
2003 Broadband Communications
Issue: 10/03, Maturity 10/04, Rate 3.00% 139,686 0 (17,461) 122,225
2004 Broadband Communications
Issue: 10/04, Maturity 10/05, Rate 4.00% 0 171,000 0 171,000
Tota Electric 411,336 171,000 (289,111) 293,225
All Other Enterprise Funds
Sanitation
2001 Sanitation Equipment Acquigtion
Issue: 10/02, Maturity 10/03, Rate 4.00% 236,250 0 (39,375) 196,875
Telecom
1996 Cable TV Headend
Issue: 03/04, Maturity 03/05, Rate 3.00% 0 181,100 0 181,100
Totd All Other Enterprise Funds 236,250 181,100 (39,375) 377,975
Tota Proprietary Funds $1,219,486 $479,650 ($494,641) $1,204,495

The following is asummary of interfund notes, outstanding a December 31, 2004:

Receivable Funds

Total
Income Non-Magjor Interfund
General Tax Governmental Water Electric Notes
Payable Funds: Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Payable
Governmental Funds:
Non-Magjor
Governmental Funds $423 $3,647 $7,382 $6,756 $25,337 $43,545
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NOTE 20— INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Receivable Funds

Total
Income Non-Major Interfund
General Tax Governmental Water Electric Notes
Payable Funds: Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Payable
Proprietary Funds:
Water Fund 5,890 71,744 102,813 0 352,848 533,295
Electric Fund 6,293 76,629 109,806 100,497 0 293,225
Non-Major
Enterprise Funds 3,550 43,224 61,939 56,687 212575 377,975
Total Proprietary Funds 15,733 191,597 274,558 157,184 565,423 1,204,495
Total Interfund
Notes Receivable $16,156 $195,244 $281,940 $163,940 $590,760 $1,248,040
Thefollowing isadetail of Interfund Bonds Receivable/Payable, by debt issue during 2004:
Bdance Bdance
01/01/2004 Additions Ddetions 12/31/2004
Governmental Activities.
Second and Wood Improvements
Issue; 09/89, Maturity 09/04, Rate 8.00% $4,887 $0 ($4,887) $0
Waverly Improvement
Issue; 04/90, Maturity 04/05, Rate 8.00% 15,357 0 (7,379) 7,978
Westwood Improvement
Issue; 09/90, Maturity 08/03, Rate 8.00% 14,161 0 (6,808) 7,353
Grandview Improvement
Issue; 09/91, Maturity 09/06, Rate 7.00% 35,395 0 (11,010) 24,385
1994 Seville Road Sanitary Sewer
Issue; 07/94, Maturity 07/09, Rate 7.00% 3,639 0 (509) 3,130
Archwood Waterline
Issue; 07/94, Maturity 07/09, Rate 7.00% 3,873 0 (1,862) 2,011
1993 Great Oaks Extension
Issue; 09/94, Maturity 09/14, Rate 8.00% 201,339 0 (12,756) 188,583
1997 Rittman Road Waterline
Issue; 07/97, Maturity 07/12, Rate 6.50% 18,212 0 (1,552) 16,660
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NOTE 20— INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Bdance Bdance

01/01/2004 Additions Deletions 12/31/2004
1999 Silvercrest Waterline
Issue: 10/98, Maturity 10/13, Rate 6.00% 48,192 0 (3,656) 44,536
1998 Silvercrest Sewer
Issue; 08/99, Maturity 08/14, Rate 6.00% 58,268 0 (3,892 54,376
1999 Mechanic Street
Issue; 08/99, Maturity 08/04, Rate 6.00% 37,669 0 (5,400) 32,269
1998 College Street Sidewak
Issue; 08/99, Maturity 08/04, Rate 6.00% 2,640 0 (2,640) 0
1998 Sidewak Improvement
Issue; 08/99, Maturity 08/04, Rate 6.00% 2,011 0 (2,011) 0
1998 Street Program
Issue: 08/99, Maturity 08/04, Rate 6.00% 1,153 0 (1,153) 0
1999 Street Program
Issue; 08/00, Maturity 08/05, Rate 6.00% 6,128 0 (2,974) 3,154
2000 Grace Drive Sanitary Sewer
Issue; 09/00, Maturity 09/15, Rate 8.00% 4,905 0 (258) 4,647
1999 Sidewak Program
Issue; 08/01, Maturity 08/06, Rate 6.00% 5,125 0 (1,610) 3,515
2000 Street Improvement
Issue; 08/01, Maturity 08/06, Rate 6.00% 6,084 0 (1,911) 4,173
Southeast Downtown
Issue; 08/01, Maturity 08/11, Rate 6.00% 22,593 0 (2,283) 20,310
2000 Sidewdk Improvement
Issue; 08/01, Maturity 08/06, Rate 6.00% 2,461 0 (773) 1,688
2001 Street Improvement
Issue; 09/02, Maturity 09/07, Rate 4.00% 5,322 0 (1,253) 4,069
2001 Sidewdk Improvement
Issue: 09/02, Maturity 09/07, Rate 4.00% 6,303 0 (1,484) 4,819
2002 Sidewdk Improvement
Issue; 09/03, Maturity 09/08, Rate 3.00% 6,622 0 (1,247) 5,375
2001 Sidewdk Improvement
Issue; 09/04, Maturity 09/07, Rate 4.00% 0 10,941 0 10,941
2002 Sidewdk Improvement
Issue; 09/04, Maturity 09/09, Rate 4.00% 0 12,651 0 12,651
Tota Governmentd Activities $512,339 $23,592 ($79,308) $456,623
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NOTE 20— INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2004 conssted of the following:

TrandersIn:
Nor-Magjor
Generd Governmentd
Fund Total

Transfers Out:
Generd Fund $0 $1,200
Income Tax Fund 3,400,000 5,056,000
Electric Fund 0 2,325
Tota $3,400,000 $1,659,525 $5,059,525

Interfund receivable/payable for the year ended December 31, 2004 conssted of the following:

Payable Fund

Recevable Fund

Norn-Mgor Governmental Funds Generd Fund - $235,700

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that
datute or budget requires to expend them and unredtricted revenues collected in the Generd Fund to finance
various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations; to segregate money for
anticipated capitd projects; to provide additiona resources for current operations or debt service; and to return
money to the fund from which it was originaly provided once a project is completed. The transfer from the Water
Fund was to provide debt service payments being paid out of the capital projects fund.

NOTE 21 - RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

On June 30, 2001 the City granted and established a franchise to Wadsworth Airport Management Corporation for
a period of five years for the operation and maintenance of the Wadsworth Municipa Airport. The City of
Wadsworth pays two thousand five hundred dollars per month to the Wadsworth Airport Management
Corporation and pays for ligbility insurance not to exceed six thousand dollars per year. Wadsworth Airport

Management Corporation agrees to pay the City of Wadsworth ten cents per gallon of aviation fuel sold.
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NOTE 22 - JOINT VENTURES
OMEGA .V 1 and OMEGA IV 6

The City’s eectric enterprise fund hes entered into an ongoing joint venture agreement with other Ohio municipa
electric sysemsto form the Ohio Municipd Electric Generation Agency Joint Ventures 1 and 6 (OMEGA JV 1 and
OMEGA JV 6) for the purpose of providing eectric power and energy to its participants on a cooperative bass.
Title to the sx diesd-powered generating unitsin OMEGA JV 1, title to the four wind turbine unitsin OMEGA vV
6 were transferred to the municipa dectrica systems from American Municipa Power-Ohio, Incorporated (AMP-
Ohio), a membership organization comprised of communities throughout Ohio, West Virginia and Pennsylvania that
own and operate dectric systems. Each participant has a contract which provides for AMP-Ohio to purchase the
right to each participant’s share of power and energy that is made available through the joint venture contract. The
City's equity interest in JV 1 and JV 6 is reported in the City's eectric enterprise fund. The City’s undivided
ownership of OMEGA JV 1 and OMEGA JV 6 is 11.24 and 3.47%, respectively. The City’s equity interest was
$52,085 and $343,509 for V 1 and JV 6, respectively, at December 31, 2004. The following is a summary of
audited financid information of OMEGA JV 1 and OMEGA JV 6 for the year ended December 31, 2004:

OMEGA OMEGA
V1 V6

Total Assts $761,171  $10,440,205
Totd Liabilities 297,785 540,797
Participants Equity 463,386 9,899,408
Tota Revenues 248,319 200,812
Total Expenses 237,064 351,404
Excess (Deficiency) Income

Over (Under) Expenses 11,255 (150,592)

Additiond financid information can be obtained from AMP-Ohio, 2600 Airport Drive, Columbus, Ohio 43219.
OMEGA JV 1 and OMEGA JV 6 are not accumulating significant financia resources or experiencing fiscal stress
which would cause additiond financid benefit to or burden on the City.

OMEGA .V 2

The City is a Financing Participant and an Owner Participant with percentages of liability and ownership of 7.41%
and 5.81%, respectively and shares participation with thirty-five other subdivisons within the State of Ohio in the
Ohio Municipd Electric Generation Agency Joint Venture 2 (OMEGA JV 2). Owner Participants own undivided
interests, as tenants in common, in the OMEGA JV 2 Project in the amount of their respective Project shares,
ownership of whichisheld in trust for such Purchaser Participants.
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NOTE 22 - JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Pursuant to the OMEGA JV 2 Agreement (Agreement), the participants jointly undertook as either Financing
Participants or Non-Financing Participants and as either Owner Participants or Purchaser Participants, the
acquisition, congtruction and equipping of OMEGA JV 2, including such portions of OMEGA JV 2 as have been
acquired, constructed or equipped by AMP-Ohio and to pay or incur the cogts of the same in accordance with the
Agreement.

Pursuant to the Agreement, each participant has an obligation to pay its share of debt service on the Didributive
Generation Bonds (Bonds) from the revenues of its dectric system, subject only to the prior payment of Operating
and Maintenance Expenses (O& M) of each participant’s System, and shall be on a parity with any outstanding and
future senior eectric system revenue bonds, notes or other indebtedness payable from any revenues of the System.
Under the terms of the Agreement, each Financing Participant isto fix, charge and collect rates, fees and charges a
least sufficient in order to maintain a debt coverage ratio equa to 110% of the sum of OMEGA JV 2 debt service
and any other outstanding senior lien dectric system revenue obligations. As of December 31, 2004, the City of
Wadsworth has met their debot coverage obligations.

OMEGA JV 2 was created to provide additiona sources of reliable, reasonably priced dectric power and energy
when prices are high or during times of generation shortages or transmisson congraints and to improve the reliability
and economic status of the participants respective municipa eectric utility system. The Project consists of 138.65
Megawatt (MW) of distributed generation of which 134.081 MW is the participants entitlement and 4.569 MW are
held in reserve. On dissolution of OMEGA JV 2, the net assets will be shared by the participants on a percentage
of ownership bass. OMEGA JV 2 is managed by AMP-Ohio, which acts as the joint venture's agent. During
2001, AMP-Ohio issued $50,260,000 of 20 year fixed rate bonds on behdf of the Financing Participants of

OMEGA JV 2. The net proceeds of the bond issue of $45,904,712 were contributed to OMEGA JV 2. The
City’s net obligation for these bonds a December 31, 2004 was $2,790,554 (including amounts withheld for Debt
Service Resarve, amounts held in the Bond Fund, previous billings to members, interest payable and debt service
paid and collected). The City’s net investment and its share of operating results of OMEGA JV 2 are reported in
the City’'s éectric fund (an enterprise fund). The City’s net investment in OMEGA JV 2 was $2,724,092 at

December 31, 2004. Complete financid statements for OMEGA JV 2 may be obtained from AMP-Ohio or from
the State Auditor’ s website at www.auditor.state.oh.us.
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The City’sligbility for the bonds are disclosed below:

Tota Debt
Principd Interest Sarvice

2005 $137,775 $158,656 $296,431

2006 143,701 152,801 296,502

2007 149,627 147,053 296,680

2008 157,034 139,571 296,605

2009 - 2020 2,642,172 916,184 3,558,356

Totd Gross Liability 3,230,309 $1,514,265 $4,744,574
Less Amounts Held in Resarve (439,755)
Net Obligation $2,790,554

Thefallowing isasummary of audited financia information of OMEGA JV 2:

Total Assts

Totd Lidbilities
Participants Equity
Totd Revenues

Totad Expenses
(Defidency) Income

(Under) Expenses
OMEGA IV 5

The City is a Financing Participant with an ownership of 5.62% and shares participation with forty-one other
subdivisons within the State of Ohio in the Ohio Municipd Electric Generation Agency Joint Venture 5 (OMEGA

OMEGA
V2
$48,687,146
1,800,880
46,886,266
2,348,002
4,802,075

(2,454,073)

JV 5). Financing Participants own undivided interests, as tenants in common, in the OMEGA JV 5 Project.

Pursuant to the OMEGA JV 5 Agreement (Agreement), the participants jointly undertook as Financing Participants,
the acquidtion, construction and equipping of OMEGA JV 5 including such portions of OMEGA JV 5 as have
been acquired, constructed or equipped by AMP-Ohio.

OMEGA JV 5 was created to construct a 42 MW run-of-the-river hydrodectric plant (including 40 MW of
backup generation) and associated transmission facilities (on the Ohio River near the Bellville, West Virginia Locks

and Dam) and sdlls dectricity from its operations to OMEGA JV 5 Participants.
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Pursuant to the Agreement, eech participant has an obligation to pay its share of debt service on the Beneficid
Interest Certificates (Certificates) from the revenues of its eectric system, subject only to the prior payment of
Operating and Maintenance Expenses (O&M) of each participant’s System, and shdl be on a parity with any
outstanding and future senior ectric system revenue bonds, notes or other indebtedness payable from any revenues
of the Sygem. On dissolution of OMEGA JV 5, the net assets will be shared by the financing participants on a
percentage of ownership basis. Under the terms of the Agreement, each participant is to fix, charge and collect
rates, fees and charges at least sufficient in order to maintain a debt coverage ratio equa to 110% of the sum of
OMEGA JV 5 debt service and any other outstanding senior lien eectric system revenue obligations. As of
December 31, 2004, the City has met their debt coverage obligation.

The Agreement provides that the failure of any OMEGA JV 5 participant to make any payment due by the due date
thereof conditutes a default. In the event of a default, OMEGA JV 5 may take certain actions including the
termination of a defaulting OMEGA JV 5 Participat’s entittement to Project Power. Each Participant may
purchase a pro rata share of the defaulting OMEGA JV 5 Participant’s entittement to Project Power, which
together with the share of the other non-defaulting OMEGA JV 5 Participants, is equd to the defaulting OMEGA
JV 5 Paticipant’s ownership share of the Project, in kilowatts (“ Step Up Power™) provided that the sum of any
such increases shdl not exceed, without consent of the non-defaulting OMEGA JV 5 Participant, an accumulated
maximum kilowaits equa to 25% of such non-defaulting OMEGA JV 5 Participant’s ownership share of the
project prior to any such increases.

OMEGA WV 5 is managed by AMP-Ohio, which acts as the joint venture' s agent. During 1993 and 2001, AMP-
Ohio issued $153,415,000 and $13,899,981, respectively of 30 year fixed rate Beneficid Interest Certificates
(Certificates) on behdf of the Financing Participants of OMEGA JV 5.The 2001 Certificates accrete to a vaue of
$56,125,000 on February 15, 2030. The net proceeds of the bond issues were used to construct the OMEGA JV
5 Project. On February 17, 2004, the 1993 Caertificates were refunded by issuing 2004 Beneficid interest
Refunding Certificates in the amount of $116,910,000, which resulted in a savings to the membership of
$34,951,833 from the periods 2005 through 2024.

The City’s net investment and its share of operating results of OMEGA JV 5 are reported in the City’ s eectric fund
(an enterprise fund). The City’s net investment to date in OMEGA JV 5 was $485,855 at December 31, 2004.
Complete financia statements for OMEGA JV 5 may be obtained from AMP-Ohio or from the State Auditor’s
website at www.auditor.state.oh.us.

The following is a summary of audited financid information of OMEGA JV 5 for the year ended December 31,
2004.

62



CITY OF WADSWORTH, OHIO

MEDINA COUNTY

NOTESTO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EORTHEF YFAR FNDFD DFCFMBFR 31, 2004

NOTE 22 - JOINT VENTURES (continued)

OMEGA
V5
Tota Assets $181,033,333
Totd Liabilities 172,388,221
Participants Equity 8,645,112
Total Revenues 21,527,028
Totd Expenses 20,775,490
Excess Income Over Expenses 751,538

Woodlann Union Cemetery

The City is a participant dong with Wadsworth Township in ajoint venture to establish and manage the Woodlavn
Union Cemetery. This establishment is dlowable under Ohio Revised Code Section 759.27. This joint venture is
consdered a separate reporting entity by the City and has not been included in these basic financid datements.

Complete financiad statements for the Woodlavn Cemetery can be obtained from the Secretary-Treasurer of the
Cemetery. Audited financia information for the Cemetery for the year ended December 31, 2004 was as follows:.

Tota Receipts $164,264
Totd Disbursements ($177,992)
Excess Receipts (Under) Disbursements ($13,728)

The Cemetery has no outstanding debt.

NOTE 23 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION

il , ; ;

The Municipa Energy Services Agency (MESA) is a jointly governed organization among the City and 30 other
municipal dectric sysems. MESA was formed to provide access to a pool of personne experienced in the
planning, management, engineering, congruction, safety training and other technical aspects of the operation and
maintenance of municipa dectric and other utility sysems. The continued existence of MESA is not dependent on
the City’s continued participation and the City does not have an equity interest in or financia responsbility for
MESA. MESA has no outstanding detit.
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EORTHE YFAR FNDED DECEMBER 31, 2004
NOTE 24 - SEGMENT INFORMATION
The City maintains two enterprise funds which are intended to be sdf-supported through user fees charged for

sarvices provided to consumers. The Sanitation Fund accounts for the charges for services fees collected for
resdentiad and commercid trash services provided to City residents. The Telecom Fund accounts for the charges

for services fees collected for cable and internet services.

Combined Statement of Net Assets

Telecom Sanitation Tota

Assats

Current Assets $181,100 $797,064 $978,164

Capital Assets 0 641,387 641,387
Totd Assts 181,100 1,438,451 1,619,551
Liabilities

Current Liabilities 10,344 32,487 42,831

Interfund Note Payable 181,100 196,875 377,975

Noncurrent Liabilities 0 44,779 44,779
Totd Lidbilities 191,444 274,141 465,585
Net Assets

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of

Related Debt 0 641,387 641,387

Unregtricted (10,344) 522,923 512,579

Total Ne& Assets ($10,344) $1,164,310 $1,153,966
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changesin Net Assets
Telecom Sanitation Tota

Charges for Services $0 $1,585,439 $1,585,439
Depreciation Expense 0 (84,331) (84,331)
Other Operating Expenses (4,311) (1,186,376) (1,190,687)
Operating Income (L0ss) (4,311) 314,732 310,421
Non-Operating Expenses

Interest and Fiscal Charges (6,033 (6,666) (12,699)
Changein Net Assats (10,344) 308,066 297,722
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 0 856,244 856,244
Net Assets (Deficit) at End of Year ($10,344) $1,164,310 $1,153,966
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NOTE 24 — SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

Telecom Sanitation Tota

Net Cash Provided by (Used for)

Operating Activities $0 $134,705 $134,705

Noncapitd Financing Activities 181,100 73,593 254,693

Capitd and Related Financing Activities 0 (202,668) (202,668)
Net Increase (Decrease) 181,100 5,630 186,730
Beginning Cash and Cash Equivdents 0 529,074 529,074
Ending Cash and Cash Equivaents $181,100 $534,704 $715,804
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor, City Auditor,
and Members of City Council
City of Wadsworth, Ohio

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Wadsworth, Ohio, as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2004, which collectively comprise the City of Wadsworth,
Ohio’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 30, 2005. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Wadsworth, Ohio’s internal control
over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material
weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation on one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by
error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited
may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.




Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Wadsworth, Ohio’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of
noncompliance that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, which is
described in the accompanying Schedule of Citation as Item 2004-1.

We also noted certain matters that we reported to the management of City of Wadsworth, Ohio, in
a separate letter dated November 30, 2005.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and members of City

Council, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

James G. Zupka, CPA, Inc.
Certified Public Accountants

November 30, 2005



CITY OF WADSWORTH, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF CITATION
DECEMBER 31, 2004

2004-1 - Appropriations Exceeded Estimated Revenue

Criteria
Ohio Revised Code 5705.39 states that total appropriations from each fund shall not exceed total
estimated revenue. The City’s appropriations exceeded estimated resources in the following funds
at December 31, 2004:
Total
Certificate
of Estimated Total Final
Resources Appropriations _ Variance

Special Revenue
Fund 239 - MVL Permissive Tax $ 396,403 $ 404,000 $ (7,597)

Capital Projects
Fund 401 - CDBG FY 1998 55,500 72,000 (16,500)

Special Assessment
Fund 566 - Street Improvement 2001 168,673 183,044 (14,371)

Enterprise
Fund 672 - Water Supply 229,396 4,087,550 (3,858,154)

Cause/Effect
The failure to limit appropriations to estimated revenue could result in expenditures exceeding
available resources.

Recommendation
We recommend that the City review estimated resources prior to appropriating the funds and strictly
follow the provisions set forth in ORC Section 5705.39.

Corrective Action
The City will implement the recommendation in 2005.




CITY OF WADSWORTH, OHIO
STATUS OF PRIOR CITATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

The prior audit report, as of December 31, 2003, included no citations. Management letter
recommendations have been corrected, repeated, or procedures instituted to prevent occurrences in
this audit period.
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